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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS AND cOLEAGUES For all members of BNSF, 2003 was

a year of hard work and great accomplishment. As we look back, there is much to be
proud of, especially in safety and revenue growth. For the first time since 1998, we
showed strong year-over-year revenue growth, posting a gain of 5 percent. Our custom-
ers responded to our service offerings by rewarding us with more of their business. As
a result of our strong growth during the second half of the year, our earnings per share
(before the cumulative effect of an accounting change) increased to $2.09.

Our safety performance in 2003 also ranks at the top of our list of achievements.
BNSF people have done a superb job at reducing reportable injuries, as well as the
severity of injuries. On these combined measures, we tracked at the lowest levels in
our history!

We're not proud of our on-time performance statistics for 2003, which averaged
88 percent. However, we ended the year handling record volumes with much stronger
performance, and that momentum has continued into 2004.

Our efficiency also continued to improve. We showed a 6 percent improvement in
the key measure of gross ton-miles (GTMs) per employee. This achievement deserves
a “thank you” to each and every member of BNSF for their commitment to getting the

job done safely and efficiently in the face of unique volume and service challenges.

FOCUSING ON PROFITABLE GROWTH We continue to build on our brand identity as the global
leader in intermodal rail transportation. With the success of new service products and
a targeted marketing strategy, our international intermodal business grew 26 percent,
passing the $1.3 billion level and producing the largest growth rate we’ve seen in any

area in recent memory. Our international intermodal business now represents about

14 percent of our total freight revenues. Given our strong presence in the growing global

marketplace, we expect this international business to continue its significant growth.

|9




2003 freight revenves reflect BNSF's balanted tommedity porifolic

Consumer Products
$3.7 billion

Coal
$2.0 billion

Industrial Products
$2.1 biffion

Agriculivral Products
$1.5 billion

BNSF’s domestic truckload intermodal business grew 19 percent in 2003. This
growth is driven, in part, by our truck-competitive service. Many trucking firms are also
turning to rail partnerships as they cope with their own economic challenges—including
new federal hours-of-service rules, stricter emissions regulations, driver availability issues
and rising insurance costs. Modal partnering makes more sense than ever for us and for
our trucking partners, with rail efficiently handling the long haul and truckers handling
the dray on either end.

Investments in new and expanded facilities are crucial in handling our intermodal
growth. Since opening in October 2002, our Logistics Park-Chicago (LPC), a facility
strategically positioned in one of the fastest growing markets in North America, has
attracted the operations of major retailers, distribution centers, ocean carriers and
motor carriers. This facility complements our earlier investments to expand intermodal
facilities in Southern California.

Though intermodal is our “growth engine,” one of our greatest strengths is BNSF’s
balanced commodity portfolio. About 6o percent of our revenues come from coal, grain
and carload traffic, and these commodities play a core role in our long-term strategy.

Our Agricultural Products revenues grew by about 4 percent in 2003, due primarily
to a strong export wheat market and an extraordinarily large grain harvest. Our 156-
station shuttle network helps us handle these peak volumes, allowing quick loading and
unloading of 110-car unit trains. This efficiency helps create a more fluid grain network
and improves equipment availability and predictability for customers.

More than half of our grain business now moves in shuttles. Although we expect
more grain traffic to move in these efficient shuttle networks, we maintain our service

commitment to those customers whose operations do not translate well to shuttle
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5% year-over-year
revenve growth in 2003

service. In addition, we are increasing our ethanol and fertilizer transportation, com-
modities less affected by seasonal and global cyclical fluctuations than the grain areas
of our agricultural business.

In Industrial Products, our carload business, we saw more than 5 percent growth in
building and construction products, while chemicals, plastics and petroleum revenues
were modestly lower. For the long term, our strategy is to grow revenue and improve
service consistency for our carload customers as we develop a better balance between
the value of our service and its price.

Coal volumes and revenues were down slightly in 2003, due mostly to milder
weather, plant shutdowns and reduced coal stockpiles at utilities. However, we see
significant upside in coal for 2004. Several new large coal contracts took effect at the
beginning of this year, including a long-term contract where we’re handling an addi-
tional 13 million tons per year—three additional loaded unit trains per day. Another
new long-term coal contract will result in more than 10 million additional tons in 2004.
We're also seeing more utilities, including those in central and eastern regions, taking

advantage of Powder River Basin coal using our efficient network.

BUILDING A CULTURE OF EFFICIENCY AND SAFETY Increased fuel prices presented our biggest chal-
lenge as we worked to manage costs in 2003. In total, fuel cost us about $240 million
more than in 2002. Our hedging program helped mitigate price increases, saving us an
average of 5.4 cents per gallon on about 65 percent of fuel purchased. A fuel surcharge
also helped us recover about 40 percent of our costs due to price increases. Despite these

efforts, fuel costs had a significant impact on our 2003 bottom line.




6% increase in gross
ton-miles per employee

In 2004, we will continue our ambitious fuel conservation program. BNSF employ-
ees are committed to fuel-saving operating practices, including adjusting train handling,
shutting down idling locomotives, and maintaining track and equipment in optimal
condition to prevent excess fuel use.

Our work to improve efficiency in Engineering and Mechanical goes beyond just
reducing costs—we are looking at more creative and efficient ways to get our work
done. For instance, in locomotive maintenance, we use predictive technologies, includ-
ing ultrasonic wheel testing and infrared scanning, to replace just those parts that need
it as part of our condition-based maintenance. In Engineering, we are achieving similar
results with our track and signal maintenance, as we redesign the work to eliminate
waste.

BNSF people have always been committed to a work environment focused on safe
production, and we had many safety successes in 2003. Our employee injury frequency
of 1.75 injuries per 200,000 hours worked was a 16 percent improvement over 2002’s
safety performance. The severity of injuries was down, as well, with an 18 percent reduc-
tion in lost days due to injuries compared with 2002. These combined ratios represent
the best safety performance in our history. However, we did have some severe injuries
and fatalities in 2003, which makes it clear that we still have work to do to attain our
goal of an injury-free workplace.

In highway-rail grade-crossing safety, we continued as an industry leader, with a
13 percent reduction in grade-crossing collisions compared with 2002. Our grade-cross-
ing closure program, started in the year 2000, celebrated its 2,000th crossing closure in
December 2003. Working with communities and landowners to identify crossings that
are unnecessary or redundant, we have closed more than 6 percent of our grade crossings
since the start of the program. The result has been reduced risk, reduced maintenance

costs and improved safety for our employees, our trains and the communities we serve.




Bes? combined safety ratios
in our history

GATHERING MOMENTUM In 2004, we will continue to work on our key strategic initiatives
that include growth, service, ease of doing business, efficiency, and recognizing and
developing our people. We also have several specific strategies to continue to increase

shareholder value and revenue growth:

¢ Under Chief Marketing Officer John Lanigan’s leadership, we are increasing the
effectiveness of our sales organization to focus on delivering consistent revenue
growth and improved returns. Increased sales staff in the field and commission-
based compensation are two important components of a strategy designed to

capture new business and increase volume across all commodities.

* To handle the explosive growth of intermodal, we are managing and selectively
expanding network capacity, while increasing revenue per unit to ensure we have

returns necessary to invest in service and capacity improvements.

* On the carload side, we are working diligently at reshaping the carload network to
focus on fewer, more cost-efficient routes and to develop gathering and distribution
networks modeled after current concepts in intermodal transportation. We are also
developing a network of multi-commodity transload facilities to support this. By
2008, you should see a significantly different carload network than you see today.

* In all business areas, we are focusing on market-based pricing. We are working
to selectively increase rates to reflect service levels and the true cost of providing

those services.

* Under the direction of Chief Operations Officer Carl Ice, we will continue to
look for ways to improve service, manage capacity and control costs while taking
on significant volume growth. We know that quality service and responsiveness to
customer needs are two accepted hallmarks of BNSF, and they are the keys to our

continued growth and success.
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In closing, let me say that what we accomplished together this year truly reflects a
great team—one in which every member of our organization really makes a difference.

For our shareholders in 2003, we increased our dividend by 25 percent to 6o cents
per share on an annualized basis. Looking ahead, continued growth in earnings per share
should enable us to further improve shareholder returns and dividend payouts, while
also enhancing our return on invested capital.

As a final note, a valued board member, John J. Burns, Jr., has reached mandatory
retirement age and will not stand for re-election in April at our Annual Meeting. We
deeply appreciate all the wisdom and insight John has offered us as a member of our
board since 1995, and we wish him and his family well in the future.

Thank you all for your support of this company, its leaders, its board and its
dedicated team of employees. Every year, we become a stronger company, and that’s
why I face the future with optimism.

February 12,2004

Matthew K. Rose
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
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Part I
ITEMS 1 AND 2. BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation (BNSF or Company) was incorporated in the State of Delaware on
December 16, 1994. On Seprember 22, 1995, the stockholders of Burlington Northern, Inc. (BNI) and Santa Fe Pacific
Corporation (SFP) became the stockholders of BNSF pursuant to a business combination of the two companies.

On December 30, 1996, BNI merged with and into SFP. On December 31, 1996, The Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe
Railway Company (ATSF) merged with and into Butlington Northern Railroad Company (BNRR), and BNRR
changed its name to The Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railway Company (BNSF Railway). On January 2, 1998,
SFP merged with and into BNSF Railway.

Through its subsidiaries, BNSF is engaged primarily in the rail transportation business. At December 31, 2003, BNSF
and its subsidiaries had approximately 36,500 employees. The rail operations of BNSF Railway, BNSF’s principal
operating subsidiary, comprise one of the largest railroad systems in North America. BNSF Railway’s business and
operations are described below.

BNSE’s Internet address is www.bnsf.com. Through this internet website (under the “Investors” link), BNSF makes
available, free of charge, its Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and Current Reports on
Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after these reports are electronically
filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission. The following documents are also made available on
the Company’s website and a copy will be mailed, withourt charge, upon request to Investor Relations:

* Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors

-+ Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers

* Code of Conduct

* Corporate Governance Guidelines

* Charters of the Audit, Compensation and Development, and Directors and Corporate Governance Committees

TRACK CONFIGURATION

As of December 31, 2003, BNSF Railway operates over a railroad system consisting of approximately 32,500 route miles
of track (excluding second, third and fourth main tracks, yard tracks, and sidings), approximately 24,500 miles of which
are owned route miles, including easements, through 28 states and two Canadian provinces. Approximately 8,000 route
miles of BNSF Railway’s system consist of trackage rights that permit BNSF Railway to operate its trains with its crews
over another railroad’s tracks. BNSF Railway operates over other trackage through lease or other contractual
arrangements.

As of December 31, 2003, the total BNSF Railway system, including first, second, third and fourth main tracks, yard
tracks, and sidings, consists of approximately 50,000 operated miles of track, all of which are owned by or held under
casement by BNSF Railway except for approximately 8,500 route miles operated under trackage rights. At December 31,
2003, approximately 26,500 miles of BNSF Railway’s track consists of 112-pound per yard or heavier rail, including
approximately 19,500 track miles of 131-pound per yard or heavier rail.




EQUIPMENT CONFIGURATION

BNSF Railway owned or had under non-cancelable leases exceeding one year the following units of railroad rolling stock
as of the dates shown below:

AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001
Locomotives 5,377 | 5,226 5,357
Freight cars:
Covered hopper 36,255 37,609 38,007
Gondola 15,327 14,942 15,075
Box-specially equipped 10,021 9,612 9,641
Open hopper 10,866 10,848 11,094
Flat 7,854 7,946 7,844
Refrigerator 5,427 5,588 5,554
Autorack 827 843 877
Tank 639 501 506
Box-general purpose 31 559 581
Other 302 319 343
Total freight cars 87,549 88,767 89,522
Domestic containers 10,627 8,197 8,259
Domestic chassis 9,864 8,180 _ 8,205
Company service cars 4,028 4,035 4,132
Trailers 2,152 2,163 2,200
Commuter passenger cars 163 160 160

The average age from date of manufacture of the locomotive fleet at December 31, 2003, was 15 years; the average age
from date of manufacture or remanufacture of the freight car fleet at December 31, 2003, was 16 years. These averages
are not weighted to reflect the greater capacities of the newer equipment.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND MAINTENANCE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

A breakdown of the Company’s cash capital expenditures for the three years ended December 31, 2003, is incorporated
by reference from a table in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations under the headings “Liquidity and Capital Resources, Investing Activities.”

BNSF’s planned 2004 cash capital expenditures are incorporated by reference from a table in Item 7, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations under the heading “Introduction.”

MAINTENANCE

As of December 31, 2003, General Electric Company, Alstom Transpottation Inc., OmniTRAX Locomotive Services,
LLC and the Electro-Motive Division of General Motors Corporation performed locomotive maintenance and overhauls
for BNSF Railway at its facilities under various maintenance agreements that covered approximately 3,200 locomotives.




The extent of the BNSF Railway’s track maintenance program is outlined in the following table:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001

Track miles of rail laid © 749 | 685 891
Cross ties inserted (thousands) 2,353 2,248 2,704
Track resurfaced (miles) 12,399 12,499 11,011

“ Includes expenditures for both mainsenance of existing route system and expansion projecss. These expenditures are primarily capitalized,

BNSF Railway’s planned 2004 track maintenance of way program will result in the installation of approximately 570
track miles of rail, the replacement of about 2.4 million ties, and the resurfacing of approximately 12,000 miles of track.

PROPERTY AND FACILITIES

BNSF Railway operates various facilities and equipment to support its transportation system, including its infrastructure
and locomotives and freight cars as previously described. It also owns or leases other equipment to support rail
operations, including highway trailers, containers and vehicles. Support facilities for rail operations include yards and
terminals throughout its rail network, system locomotive shops to perform locomotive servicing and maintenance, a
centralized network operations center for train dispatching and network operations monitoring and management in Fort
Worth, Texas, regional dispatching centers, computers, telecommunications equipment, signal systems, and other
support systems. Transfer facilities are maintained for rail-to-rail as well as intermodal transfer of containers, trailers and
other freight traffic. These facilities include 36 major intermodal hubs located across the system as well as 1 intermodal
hub center located off-line used in connection with haulage agreements with other railroads. BNSF Railway’s largest
intermodal facilities in terms of 2003 volume were:

INTERMODAL FACIITIES LFTS
Hobart Yard (Los Angeles, California) 1,217,000
Corwith Yard (Chicago, Illinois) 697,000
Willow Springs (Illinois) 658,000
San Bernardino (California) 497,000
Alliance (Fort Worth, Texas) 476,000
Cicero (IHlinois) 454,000
Argentine (Kansas City, Kansas) 273,000

BNSF Railway owns 235 automotive distribution facilities where automobiles are loaded or unloaded from multi-level rail
cars and serves eight port facilities in the United States and Canada.

BNSF Railway’s largest freight car classification yards based on the average daily number of cars processed (excluding cars
that do not change trains at the terminal and intermodal and coal cars) are shown below:

CLASSIFICATION YARD DAILY AVERAGE CARS PROCESSED
Argentine (Kansas City, Kansas) 1,814
Galesburg (Illinois) 1,590
Barstow (California) 1,323
Pasco (Washington) 1,210
Memphis (Tennessee) 938

As of December 31, 2003, certain BNSF Railway properties and other assets are subject to liens securing $391 million of
mortgage debt. Certain locomotives and rolling stock of BNSF Railway are subject to equipment obligations and leases,
as referred to in Notes 9 and 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.




PRODUCTIVITY

Productivity, as measured by thousand gross ton miles per employee, has risen steadily in the last three years as shown in
the table below.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 ' 2002 2007

Thousand gross ton miles divided by average number of employees 24,875 l 23,368 22,862

A discussion of Employees and Labor Relations is incorporated by reference from Item 7, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, under the headings “Other Matters; Employee and Labor
Relations.”

BUSINESS MIX

In serving the Midwest, Pacific Northwest and the Western, Southwestern, and Southeastern regions and ports of the
country, BNSF Railway transports, through one operating transportation services segment, a range of products and
commodities derived from manufacturing, agricultural, and natural resource industries. Accordingly, its financial
performance is influenced by, among other things, general and industry economic conditions at the international,
national, and regional levels. The map below illustrates the Company’s primary routes, including trackage rights, which
allow BNSF Railway to access major cities and ports in the western United States as well as Canadian and Mexican
traffic. In addition to major cities and ports, BNSF Railway efficiently serves many smaller markets by working closely
with the Company’s more than 200 shortline partners. BNSF has also entered into marketing agreements with Canadian
National Railway Company and Kansas City Southern Railway Company expanding the marketing reach for the
organizations.
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CONSUMER PRODUCTS:

The Consumer Products’ freight business provided approximately 39 percent of freight revenues in 2003 and consisted
of the following business sectors:

© ® INTERNATIONAL International business consists primarily of container traffic from steamship companies and accounted
for approximately 37 percent of total Consumer Products revenues.

* DIRECT MARKETNG. Direct marketing generated approximately 20 percent of total Consumer Products revenues. This
business centers around intermodal traffic contracted from parcel shippers such as United Patcel Service and service
for nationwide and regional LTL (less-than-truckload) carriers such as Yellow-Roadway Corporation.

* Ttruckioab. Truckload traffic represented approxtmately 17 percent of total Consumer Products revenues. This traffic
is comprised of business through a joint service arrangement with J.B. Hunt, as well as business from Schneider
National and other truckload carriers.

* INTERMODAL MARKETING COMPANIES. Approximately 10 percent of total Consumer Products revenues was generated
through intermodal marketing companies, primarily shipper agents and consolidators.

* automotve, The transportation of both assembled motor vehicles and shipments of vehicle parts to numerous
destinations throughout the Midwest, Southwest, West and Pacific Northwest provided about 8 percent of 2003
total Consumer Products revenue.

* PERISHABLES AND DRY BOXCAR. Perishables and Dry Boxcar represented approximately 8 percent of total Consumer
Products revenue. This group consists of beverages, canned goods and perishable food items. Other consumer
goods handled include cotron, salt, rubber and tires, and miscellaneous boxcar shipments.

INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS:

Indusmal Products’ freight business provided approximately 23 percent of BNSF’s freight revenues in 2003 and
conisisted of the following four business areas:

+ consTRucTIoN propucts. The construction products sector represented approximately 36 percent of total Industrial
Products revenue in 2003. This sector serves virtually all of the commodities included in or resulting from the
production of steel along with mineral commodities such as clays, sands, cements, aggregates, sodium compounds
and other industrial minerals. Industrial taconite, an iron ore derivative produced in northern Minnesota, scrap
steel and coal coke are BNSF Railway’s primary input products transported. Finished steel products range from
structural beams and steel coils to wire and nails. BNSF Railway links the integrated steel mills in the East with
fabricators in the West and Southwest. Service is also provided to various mini-mills in the Southwest that produce
rebar, beams and coiled rod for the construction industry. Industrial minerals include various mined and processed
commodities such as cement and aggregates (construction sand, gravel and crushed stone) that generally move to
domestic markets for use in general construction and public work projects, including highways. Borates and clays
move to domestic points as well as to export markets primarily through West Coast ports. Sodium compounds,
primarily soda ash, are moved to domestic markets for use in the manufacturing of glass and other industrial
products. Sand is utilized in the manufacturing of glass and in foundry and oil drilling applications.

* suLbiNG propucts. This sector generated approximately 35 percent of total 2003 Industrial Products revenues and
includes primary forest product commodities such as lumber, plywood, oriented strand board, particleboard, paper
products, pulpmill feedstocks, wood pulp and sawlogs. Also included in this sector are government, machinery and
waste traffic. Commodities from this diverse group primarily originate from the Pacific Northwest, Western
Canada, upper Midwest, and the Southeast for shipment mainly into domestic markets. Industries served include
construction, furniture, photography, publishing, newspaper and industrial packaging. Shipments of waste, ranging
from municipal waste to contaminated soil, are transported to landfills and reclamation centers across the country.
The government and machinery business includes aircraft parts, agricultural and construction machinery, military
equipment and large industrial machinery.

*  CHEMICALS AND PLASTICS. The chemicals and plastics sector represents approximately 16 percent of total 2003 Industrial
Products revenues. This group is composed of industrial chemicals and plastics commodities. These commodities
include caustic soda, chlorine, industrial gases, acids, polyethylene, polypropylene and polyvinyl chloride. Industrial
chemicals and plastics resins are used by the automotive, housing, and packaging industries, as well as for
feedstocks, to produce other chemical and plastic products. These commodities originate primarily in the Gulf
Coast region for shipment mainly into domestic markets.




¢ peroleum. Commeodities included in the petroleum sector are liquefied petroleum gas (LPG), diesel fuels, asphal,
alcohol, solvents, petroleum coke, lubes, oils, waxes and carbon black, which made up 13 percent of total Industrial
Products revenues for 2003. Product use varies based on commodity, and includes the use of LPG for heating
purposes, diesel fuel and lubes to run heavy machinery, and asphalt for road projects and roofing. Products within
this group originate and terminate throughout the BNSF network, with the largest areas of activities being the
Texas Gulf, Pacific Northwest, California, Montana and Illinois.

COAL:

As one of the largest transporters of low-sulfur coal in the United States, BNSF Railway hauls enough coal to generate
about ten percent of the electricity produced in this country. In 2003, the transportation of coal contributed about 22
percent of freight revenues. BNSF Railway is the largest transporter of low-sulfur coal originating from the Powder River
Basin of Wyoming and Montana, which accounted for approximately 90 percent of all BNSF Railway's coal tons during
the three years ending in December 31, 2003. These coal shipments were destined for coal-fired electric generating
stations located primarily in the North Central, South Central, Southeast and Mountain regions of the United States.
BNSF Railway also transports coal from the Powder River Basin to markets in the eastern United States. Demand for
Powder River Basin coal has increased substantially over the past 20 years due to environmental compliance issues,
abundant reserves, relacively inexpensive mine production and compertitive delivered cost to power plants. Continued
deregulation within the electric utility industry may positively impact future demand for Powder River Basin coal.

Other BNSF coal shipments originate principally in Colorado, llinois, New Mexico and North Dakota. These
shipments move to electrical generating stations and industrial plants in the Mountain and North Central regions of the
United States and Mexico.

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS:

The rtransportation of Agricultural Products provided approximately 16 percent of 2003 total freight revenues and
includes wheat, corn, bulk foods, soybeans, oil seeds and meals, feeds, barley, oats and rye, flour and mill products, milo,
oils, specialty grains, malt, ethanol and fertilizer. The BNSF Railway system is strategically located to serve the grain-
producing regions of the Midwest and Great Plains. The Company is developing and operating a shuttle network for
grain, grain products and fertilizer, which allows more efficient use of equipment and improved cycle times as a result of
the shutte process. In addition to serving most grain-producing areas, BNSF Railway serves most major terminal,
storage, feeding and food-processing locations. Furthermore, BNSF Railway has access to major export markets in the
Pacific Northwest, western Great Lakes, Texas Gulf and Mexico.

FREIGHT STATISTICS:

The following table sets forth certain freight statistics relating to rail operations for the periods indicated:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 | 2002 2001
1

Revenue ton miles (millions) 508,200 : 490,234 501,829

Freight revenue per thousand revenue ton miles $ 18.27 : $ 18.10 $ 1811

Average length of haul (miles) 1,014 [ 992 992

Revenue, cars/units and average revenue per car/unit information for the three years ended December 31, 2003, is
incorporated by reference from a table in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, under the headings “Results of Operations; Revenue Table.”

GOVERNMENT REGULATION AND LEGISLATION

Rail operations are subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the Surface Transportation Board (STB) of the United States
Department of Transportation (DOT), the Federal Railroad Administration of DOT, the Occupational Safety and
Health Administration (OSHA) as well as state regulatory agencies. The STB has jurisdiction over disputes and
complaints involving certain rates, routes and services, the sale or abandonment of rail lines, applications for line
extensions and construction, and consolidation or merger with, or acquisition of control of, rail common carriers. The
outcome of STB proceedings can affect the costs and profitability of BNSF’s business.




DOT and OSHA have jurisdiction under several federal statutes over a number of safety and health aspects of rail
operations. State agencies regulate some aspects of rail operations with respect to health and safety in areas not otherwise

preempted by federal law.

BNSF Railway’s rail operations, as well as those of its competitors, are subject to extensive federal, state and local
environmental regulation. These laws cover discharges to water, air emissions, toxic substances, and the generation,
handling, storage, transporration and disposal of waste and hazardous materials. This regulation has the effect of
increasing the cost and liabilities associated with rail operations. Environmental risks are also inherent in rail operations,
which frequently involve transporting chemicals and other hazardous materials.

Many of BNSF Railway’s land holdings are and have been used for industrial or transportation-related purposes or leased
to commercial or industrial companies whose activities may have resulted in discharges onto the property. As a result,
BNSF Railway is now subject and will from time to time continue to be subject to environmental cleanup and
enforcement actions. In particular, the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
(CERCLA), also known as the Superfund law, generally imposes joint and several liability for cleanup and enforcement
costs, without regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct, on current and former owners and operators of a site.
Accordingly, BNSF Railway may be responsible under CERCLA and other federal and state statutes for all or part of the
costs to cleanup sites at which certain substances may have been released by BNSF Railway, its current lessees, formet
owners or lessees of properties, or other third parties. Further discussion is incorporated by reference from Note 10 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

COMPETITION

The business environment in which BNSF Railway operates remains highly competitive. Depending on the specific
market, deregulated motor carriers, other railroads and river barges may exert pressure on price and service levels. The
presence of advanced, high service truck lines with expedited delivery, subsidized infrastructure and minimal empty
mileage continues to affect the market for non-bulk, time sensitive freight. The potential expansion of longer
combination vehicles could further encroach upon markets traditionally served by railroads. In order to remain
competitive, BNSF Railway and other railroads continue to develop and implement operating efficiencies to improve

productivity.

As railroads streamline, rationalize and otherwise enhance their franchises, competition among rail carriers intensifies.
BNSF Railway’s primary rail competitor in the western region of the United States is the Union Pacific Railroad
Company (UP). Other Class I railroads and numerous regional railroads and motor carriers also operate in patts of the
same territories served by BNSF Railway.

Based on weekly reporting to the Association of American Railroads, in 2003, BNSF’s share of the western United States
rail traffic was approximately 45 percent.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Ray Ridgeway, er al. v. Burlington Novthern Santa Fe Corporation and The Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railway
Company, No. 48-185170-00 (District Court of Tarrant County, Texas, 48" Judicial District) is a state court action filed
on October 27, 2000. The plaintiffs’ causes of action include alleged breach of contract, negligence, and breach of
fiduciary duties with respect to a special dividend that was paid in 1988 by a Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation
(BNSF) predecessor, Santa Fe Southern Pacific Corporation (SFSP). The complaint alleges that SESP erroneously
informed shareholders as to the tax treatment of the dividend--specifically, the apportionment of the dividend as either a
distribution of earnings and profits or a return of capital--which allegedly caused some shareholders to overpay their
income taxes. The plaintiffs assert through their expert’s report, that SFSP had essentially no accumulated earnings and
profits and that the entire dividend distribution should have been treated as a return of capital, rather than the
approximately 34 percent that SFSP determined was a return of capital. BNSF believes these claims lack merit and that it
has substantial defenses on both the merits of these claims and the attempted class action, and it is defending these claims
vigorously.




[n 2002, BNSF Railway was sued by the North Dakota Department of Health (DOH), and a number of private
intervenors, including the City of Mandan, regarding the scope of BNSF’s obligation to remediate all or part of a diesel
plume or plumes in Mandan, North Dakota. Proceedings were brought in state court, North Dakota Department of
Health, et al. v. The Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Raitway Company; District Court, State of North Dakota, County
of Morton, South Central Judicial District Civil No. 02-C-1174, and in an administrative proceeding (Case No. 84-400
WPC). In both proceedings, DOH is secking injunctive relief and compensatory damages as well as unspecified penalties
that could exceed $100,000 due to alleged, historic spills of fuel. The intervenors are seeking injunctive relief and
personal injury and property damages. In August 2002, the administrative law judge recommended granting the
plaintiffs’ Motion for Partial Summary Judgment but that penalties were inappropriate against BNSF Railway. The
subsequent administrative order issued on February 5, 2003, granted Partial Summary Judgment on liability and denied
BNSF’s Motion to Stay the Administrative Proceeding but did not include the administrative law judge’s
recommendation regarding penalties. BNSF appealed the order in May 2003. On October 21, 2003, the state court
reversed the order and the administrative proceeding was stayed pending outcome of the state court lawsuit.

BNSF and its subsidiaries are parties to a number of legal actions and claims, various governmental proceedings and
private civil suits arising in the ordinary course of business, including those related to environmental matters, Federal
Employers’ Liability Act claims by BNSF Railway employees, other personal injury claims, and disputes and complaines
involving certain transportation rates and charges (including complaints seeking refunds of prior charges paid for coal
transportation and the prescription of future rates for such movements). Some of the legal proceedings include claims for
punitive as well as compensatory damages, and a few proceedings purport to be class actions. While the final outcome of
these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, considering among other things the meritorious legal defenses available
and liabilities that have been recorded along with applicable insurance, it is the opinion of BNSF’s management that
none of these items will have a material adverse effect on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity of
BNSF. However, an unexpected adverse resolution of one or more of these items could have a material adverse effect on
the results of operations in a particular quarter or fiscal year.

Reference is made to Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information concerning certain pending tax
related administrative or adjudicative state proceedings or appeals.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted by BNSF to a vote of its securities holders during the fourth quarter of 2003.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Listed below are the names, ages, and paositions of all executive officers of BNSF and their business experience during the
past five years. Executive officers hold office until their successors are elected or appointed, or until their earlier death,
retirement, resignation, or removal.

MATTHEW K. ROSE, 44

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of BNSF since March 2002. Previously President and Chief Executive
Officer of BNSF from December 2000. Also, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of BNSF Railway from
December 2000. Previously, President and Chief Operating Officer of BNSF from June 1999 to December 2000, Senior
Vice President and Chief Operations Officer from August 1997 to June 1999.

THOMAS N. HUND, 50

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since January 2001. Prior to that, Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer from August 1999, and Vice President and Controller from January 1996.

CARLR. ICE, 47

Executive Vice President and Chief Operations Officer since January 2001. Prior to that, Senior Vice President-
Operations from June 1999, Vice President-Operations North from January 1999, and Vice President-Chief Mechanical
Officer from December 1996.




DENNIS R. JOHNSON, 42

Vice President and Controller since August 1999. Prior to that, Assistant Vice President and Assistant Controller from
January 1996.

JOHN P. LANIGAN, JR., 48

Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer since January 2003. Prior to that, President and Chief Executive
Officer of Logistics.com, Inc. (provider of ASP-based transportation procurement services to shippers and carriers) from
May 2000, and President and Chief Operating Officer from March 2000; Chief Operating Officer of Schneider
National, Inc. (truckload freight hauler) from 1999 to 2000, and President, Transportation Sector from 1995 to 1999.

JEFFREY R. MORELAND, 59

Executive Vice President Law & Government Affairs and Secretary since December 2001. Prior to that, Executive Vice
President-Law and Chief of Staff since January 2001, and Senior Vice President-Law and Chief of Staff since February
1998.

PETER J. RICKERSHAUSER, 55

Vice President-Network Development since May 1999. Prior to that, Vice President-Business Development, Merchandise
Marketing from December 1998.
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

BNSF’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “BNI.” The common stock is also
listed on the Chicago Stock Exchange and Pacific Exchange. Information as to the high and low sales prices of such stock
for the two years ending December 31, 2003, and the frequency and amounc of dividends declared on such stock during
such periods, is set forth in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The approximate aumber of holders of
record of the common stock at February 2, 2004, was 40,000.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents, as of and for the dates indicated, selected historical financial information for the Company
(doliars in millions, except per share data):

DECEMBER 31, 2003 | 2002 2001 2000 1999
FOR THE YEAR ENDED:
Revenues $ 9,413 $ 8,979 $ 9,208 § 9,207 $ 9,195
Operating income $ 1,665 $ 1,656 $ 1,750 $ 2,113 $ 2,209
Income before cumulative effect of

accounting change $ 777¢ $ 760 $ 731 $ 980 $ 1,137
Basic earnings per share (before

cumnulative effect of accounting change) $ 2.10¢ $ 2.01 $ 1.89 $ 2.38 $ 246
Average basic shares (in millions) 369.1 378.0 387.3 412.1 463.2
Diluted earnings per share (before

cumulative effect of accounting change) $ 2.09% $ 2.00 $ 1.87 $ 2.36 $ 2.44
Average diluted shares (in millions) 372.3 380.8 390.7 415.2 466.8
Dividends declared per common share $ 054 $ 048 $ 048 $ 048 $ 048
AT YEAR END:
Toral assets $26,939 $25,767 $24,721 $24,375 $23,700
Long-term debt and commercial paper,

including current portion $ 6,684 $ 6,814 $ 6,651 $ 6,846 $ 5,813
Stockholders’ equity $ 8,495 $ 7,932 $ 7,849 $ 7,480 $ 8,172
Net debt to total capiralization® 44.0% 46.1% 45.8% 47.7 % 41.5%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED:
Total capital expenditures $ 1,726 $ 1,358 $ 1,459 $ 1,399 $ 1,788
Depreciation and amortization $ 910 $ 931 $ 909 $ 895 $ 897

(a) 2003 income before cumulative effect of accounting change excludes the favorable cumulative effect of an accounting change of $39 million, net of tax,
or $0.11 per basic share and $0.10 per diluted share, as described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(b))  Net debr is caleulated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents, and total capitalization is caleulated as the sum of net debt and total stockholders’
equity.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Management’s discussion and analysis relates to the financial condition and results of operations of Burlington Northern
Santa Fe Corporation and its majority-owned subsidiaties, all of which are separate legal entities (collectively, BNSF or
Company). The principal subsidiary of BNSF is The Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railway Company (BNSF
Railway). All earnings per share information is stated on 2 diluted basis.

10




INTRODUCTION

BNSF Railway continues to be one of the primary rail transporters in North America. Based on weekly reporting to the
Association of American Railroads, for 2003, BNSF’s share of the western United States rail traffic was approximately 45
percent, a 1 point market share gain compared with 2002. The increase in market share was primarily driven by the
Company’s strong growth in intermodal traffic.

Strong growth in international and truckload business, along with increased export demand for grain and continued
heavy demand for construction and building products enabled BNSF to achieve 5-percent revenue growth in 2003
compared with 2002. Three of BNSF’s four business groups experienced year-over-year revenue growth; however, coal
revenues were down slightly. For 2004, the Company anticipates continued revenue growth as both the global and U.S
economies continue to expand.

In 2003, high fuel costs again impacted BNSF’s operating income, accounting for half of the 6 percent increase in
operating expenses. BNSF mitigated some of the fuel price increases through the Company’s fuel hedging program as
well as through fuel surcharges added to a majority of BNSF’s transportation rates.

Each year capital expenditures are a significant use of cash for BNSF. In 2003, BNSF increased its capital expenditures
by approximately $350 million, over the prior year, to approximately $1.7 billion to purchase, instead of lease,
locomotives as well as to advance construction of double track on a portion of BNSF Railway’s transcontinental route.
The Company plans to incur approximately $1.9 billion in capital expenditures in 2004. Approximately $1.2 billion of
the total 2004 planned capital expenditures will be for maintenance of business activities, primarily consisting of
expenditures to maintain BNSF’s track, signals, bridges and tunnels. The Company plans to spend approximately $0.5
billion on the acquisition of locomotives. The remaining $0.2 billion is planned for terminal and line expansions, as well
as other strategic projects.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

REVENUE TABLE

The following table presents BNSF’s revenue information by commodity for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001:

REVENUES CARS / UNITS

IN MILLIONS IN THOUSANDS AVERAGE REVENUE PER CAR / UNIT
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Consumer Products $3,657 | $3,353 $3,356 4,336 | 3,880 3,752 $843 $864 $894
Industrial Products 2,138 2,041 2,080 1,428 1,415 1,442 1,497 1,442 1,442
Coal 2,025 2,071 2,123 2,048 | 2,097 2,133 989 988 995
Agricultural Products 1,465 | 1,408 1,531 834 794 828 1,757 | 1,773 1,849
Total Freight Revenues 9,285 | 8873 9,090 8,646 | 8,186 8,155 $1,074 | $1,084 $1,115
Other Revenues 128 106 118

Total Operating Revenues ~ $9,413 L$8,979 $9,208
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EXPENSE TABLE

The following table presents BNSF’s expense information for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 (in
millions):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001
Compensation and benefits $2,964 $2,894 $2,861
Purchased services 1,253 1,146 1,090
Depreciation and amortization 910 931 909
Equipment rents 705 698 736
Fuel 1,073 833 973
Materials and other 843 821 889

Total operating expenses $7,748 $7,323 $7,458
Interest expense $420 $428 8463
Other expense, net $14 $12 $114
Income tax expense $454 $456 $442

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 COMPARED WITH YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002

BNSF recorded net income for 2003 of $816 million, or $2.19 per share, which includes the favorable cumulative effect
of an accounting change of $39 million, net of tax, or $0.10 per share, (See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements) compared with net income for 2002 of $760 million, or $2.00 per share. Operating income of $1,665
million in 2003 was $9 million higher than 2002,

REVENUES

Freight revenues of $9,285 million for 2003 were $412 million, or 5 percent, higher than 2002. Freight revenues in
2003 included fuel surcharges of $110 million compared with $26 million in the prior year. Average revenue per car/unit
decreased 1 percent in 2003 to $1,074 from $1,084 in 2002.

Consumer Products revenues of $3,657 million for 2003 were $304 million, or 9 percent, greater than 2002. The
increase in Consumer Products revenue is primarily due to increased volumes in the international, truckload and
perishable sectors. The reduction in average revenue per unit of 2 percent is primarily related to the strong growth in the
international sector, which has lower average revenue per unit.

Industrial Products revenues increased $97 million, or 5 percent, to $2,138 million for 2003. The revenue increase is
primarily due to increased business in steel, taconite, clay and minerals in the construction products sector and increased
military, lumber, plywood, particle board and paper traffic in the building products sector, which were somewhat offset
by lower plastics traffic. Rate increases along with increased fuel surcharges contributed to a 4 percent increase in average
revenue per car.

Coal revenues of $2,025 million for 2003 decreased $46 million, or 2 percent, versus a year ago. The decrease is
primarily a result of lower volumes from the first quarter draw-down of urility stockpiles, weaker demand due to milder
weather, utility plant shutdowns and the conversion of a utility plant from coal to natural gas. The average revenue per
car grew slightly.

Agricultural Products revenues of $1,465 million for 2003 were $57 million, or 4 percent, higher than revenues for
2002. This increase is primarily due to more ethanol shipments from plants in the Midwest to California and higher
shipments of ethanol by-products. Increased export shipments of soybeans also contributed to growth. The average
revenue per car was down slightly due to a change in traffic mix partially offset by increased fuel surcharges.




EXPENSES

Total operating expenses for 2003 were $7,748 million, an increase of $425 million, or 6 percent, over 2002 primarily
due 1o higher fuel expenses and greater volumes handled.

Fuel expenses of $1,073 million for 2003 were $240 million, or 29 percent, higher than 2002. The increase in fuel
expense was primarily the result of a 16-cent, or $194 million, increase in the average all-in cost per gallon of diesel fuel.
The increase in the average all-in cost per gallon of diesel fuel is comprised of a 17-cent, or $212 million, increase in the
average purchase price which is partially offset by an increase in the hedge benefit of 1-cent, or $18 million (2003 benefit
of $68 million less 2002 benefit of $50 million). Consumption in 2003 was 1,213 million gallons compared with 1,149
million gallons in 2002.

Compensation and benefits expenses of $2,964 million were $70 million, or 2 percent, higher than 2002 primarily due
to higher volumes and the implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143, Accounting
Jor Asset Retirement Obligations, as described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, as well as wage
inflation, higher pension costs and new hire crew training, partially offset by lower head counts and the favorable impact
of railroad retirement reform (See furcher discussion under the headings “Other Matters; Railroad Retirement Reform”).

Purchased services expenses of $1,253 million for 2003 were $107 million, or 9 percent, higher than 2002 primarily due
to volume-related intermodal ramp and drayage costs and increased locomotive maintenance costs associated with
maintaining more locomotives as well as higher service contracts expense related to an agreement to outsource the
management of a large portion of BNSF’s information technology infrastructure entered into during the third quarter of
2002 and the implementation of SFAS No. 143.

Depreciation and amortization expenses of $910 million for 2003 were $21 million, or 2 percent, lower than 2002
primarily due to the implementation of SFAS No. 143, as well as new lower depreciation rates for locomotives partially
offsec by normal increases for capital expenditures. Additionally, at the time of the merger of Burlington Northern
Railroad Company and The Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railway Company (ATSF), the Company recorded a
decrease in the fair marker value of former ATSF locomotives. The decrease was amortized over the remaining useful life
of the locomotives and resulted in an annual decrease to depreciation expense. The amortization period expired at the
end of 2003; accordingly, this will cause 2004 and future years’ depreciation expense to increase by approximately $40
million. In addition, 2004 depreciation expense will increase from capital expenditure activity.

Equipment rents expenses for 2003 of $705 million were $7 million, or 1 percent, higher than 2002 primarily due to
volume growth partially offset by decreases in intermodal and carload equipment rent expenses. Decreases in intermodal
and carload equipment rent expenses are a result of greater use of private trailers and containers, as well as favorable lease
renegotiations and short term lease rate incentives.

Materials and other expenses of $843 million for 2003 were $22 million, or 3 percent, higher than 2002 principally due
to the implementation of SFAS No. 143, employee severance costs and lower gains from property sales substantially
offset by decreased material costs and bad debt expense.

Interest expense of $420 million for 2003 was $8 million, or 2 percent, lower than 2002, This decrease was primarily the
result of lower average interest rates and an increased benefit from interest rate hedges, partially offset by higher average
debt outstanding.

Other expense of $14 million for 2003 was $2 million higher than in 2002.

The effective tax rate in 2003 was 36.9 percent compared with 37.5 percent for the prior-year petiod. The decrease in
the effective tax rate primarily reflects a tax sertlement attributable to prior years that was settled favorably in the second
quarter of 2003.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 COMPARED WITH YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

BNSF recorded net income for 2002 of $760 million, or $2.00 per share, compared with net income for 2001 of $731
million, or $1.87 per share. Operating income of $1,656 million in 2002 was $94 million lower than 2001.
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REVENUES

Freight revenues of $8,873 million for 2002 were $217 million, or 2 percent, lower than 2001. In 2002, the combined
effect of the soft economy, a mild winter, reduced foreign demand for agricultural products and the loss of an
automotive contact in the third quarter of 2001 contributed to a decrease in BNSF’s revenues.

Consumer Products revenues of $3,353 million for 2002 were essentially flat compared with 2001. Decreased
automotive revenues related to an automobile contract loss in 2001 offser increased intermodal volumes in the
international and truckload businesses. Additionally, 2001 Consumer Products revenues includes an automotive revenue
contract settlement gain of $32 million. International increases were driven by favorable trans-Pacific trade and new
contracts. Truckload revenues were up due to strong growth from the Company’s primary accounts and modal
conversion of highway traffic from new and existing shippers. The reduction in revenue per car/unit is related to a
decrease in automotive traffic and an increase in international traffic, which primarily moves in containers and unit
trains, and due to the lower cost structure, moves at lower rates per unit.

Industrial Products revenues of $2,041 million for 2002 were $39 million, or 2 percent, lower than 2001. An increase in
the chemicals and plastics sector tied to strength in automotive and home construction along with a new contract was
more than offset by general softness in the petroleum, building and construction product sectors. Petroleum was down
due to higher heating fuel inventories as a result of the mild winter. Building and construction product sectors were
down primarily due to weak paper and steel markets.

Coal revenues of $2,071 million for 2002 decreased $52 million, or 2 percent, versus 2001. Volume was lower than
2001 primarily as a result of reduced demand in the first half of 2002 caused by mild winter weather. Revenue per
car/unit decreased as a result of modest price decreases related to the renewal of some contracts and rate adjustment
factors in existing contracts that were negative in the first half of the year.

Agricultural Products revenues of $1,408 million for 2002 were $123 million, or 8 percent, lower than revenues for
2001 primarily due to decreased soybean, wheat and corn exports due to global market conditions. The decrease in
export traffic resulted in lower revenue per unit because of a shorter length of haul. Domestic corn shipments to feedlots
were. also down. from 2001 as a result of reduced feedlot demand, high inventory levels remaining from 2001 shipments
and crop production conditions.

EXPENSES

Total operating expenses for 2002 were $7,323 million, a decrease of $135 million, or 2 percent, over 2001 primarily
due to a lower total cost per gallon of diesel fuel, lower equipment rents expense driven by an initiative to use less foreign
equipment and increased gains on property dispositions.

Compensation and benefits expenses of $2,894 million were $33 million, or 1 percent, higher than 2001 primarily due
to increases in health and welfare costs, principally as a result of an increase in rates, incentive compensation, and
pension expense primarily reflecting a decrease in the long-term rate of return assumption for pension assets. These
increases were partially offset by reduced labor expenses as a result of lower employment levels.

Purchased services of $1,146 million for 2002 were $56 million, or 5 percent, higher than 2001 because of a one-time
flood related recovery and higher other recoveries in 2001, higher insurance expense in 2002, as well as higher service
contracts expense related to an agreement to outsource the management of a large portion of BNSF’s information
technology infrastructure entered into during the third quarter of 2002.

Depreciation and amortization expenses of $931 million for 2002 were $22 million, or 2 percent, higher than 2001
primarily due to a higher capital base.

Equipment rents expenses for 2002 of $698 million were $38 million, or 5 percent, lower than 2001. The decrease is
primarily related to lower carload equipment expense driven by an initiative to use less foreign equipment, short-term
lease incentives and lower auto equipment expense as a result of the loss of an automotive contrace in the third quarter of
2001.




Fue!l expenses of $833 million for 2002 were $140 million, or 14 percent, lower than 2001. The decrease in fuel expense
was primarily the result of a 10-cent, or $117 million, decrease in the average all-in cost per gallon of diesel fuel. The
decrease in the average all-in cost per gallon of diesel fuel is comprised of the combination of a 10-cent, ot $115 million,
decrease in the average purchase price and a slight increase in the hedge benefit of less than 1-cent, or $2 million (2002
benefit of $50 million less 2001 benefit of $48 million). Consumption in 2002 was 1,149 million gallons compared with
1,177 million gallons in 2001.

Materials and other expenses of $821 million for 2002 were $68 million, or 8 percent, lower chan 2001 principally due
to a $66-million charge for workforce reduction related costs in 2001, and increased gains on property dispositions and
lower costs on leased locomotives partially offset by higher personal injury expense in 2002.

Interest expense of $428 million for 2002 was $35 million, or 8 percent, lower than 2001. This decrease was primarily
the result of a higher net interest rate hedge benefit and lower average intetest rates. The net interest rate hedge benefit in
2002 was $24 million. There was no interest rate hedge benefit or loss in 2001.

Other expense was $12 million or $102 million lower compared with 2001 primarily due to $75 million of losses
recognized in 2001 related to non-rail investments. The non-rail investments consisted of FreightWise, Inc., an Internet
transportation exchange; Pathner Telecommunications, Inc., a telecommunications venture; a portfolio of other non-
core investments; and a decline in the cash surrender value of company owned life insurance policies. In addition, there
was a decrease in accounts receivable sale fees in 2002 compared with 2001.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash generated from operations is BNSF’s principal source of liquidity. BNSF generally funds any additional liquidity
requirements through debt issuance including commercial paper, the leasing of assets and the sale of a portion of its
accounts receivable.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided by operating activities was $2,285 million during 2003 compared wich $2,106 million during 2002.
The increase was primarily the result of changes in working capital and the Seattle Sound Transit transaction (See further
discussion under the headings “Other Marters; Seattle Sound Transit”).

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash used for investing activities was $1,806 million during 2003 compared with $1,517 million during 2002. The
increase in cash capital expenditures primarily relates to the purchase, instead of lease, of locomotives as well as the
advance construction of double track on a portion of BNSF Railway’s transcontinental route. The decrease in cash used
for other investing activities primarily reflects a classification change resulting from the implementation of SFAS No.
143, which reduced expenditures capitalized for rerired track structure removal.




A breakdown of cash capital expenditures during 2003, 2002 and 2001 is set forth in the following table (in millions):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001
Maintenance of way:
Rail $ 202 § 193 $ 233
Ties 227 222 254
Surfacing 160 161 146
Other 337 325 335
Total maintenance of way $ 926 $ 901 $ 968
Mechanical 133 168 183
Informartion services 63 79 69
Other 116 107 113
Total maintenance of business $1,238 B $1,255 $1,333
New locomotive acquisitions 270 - -
Terminal and line expansion 218 | 103 126
Total $1,726 | $1,358 $1,459

BNSF has agreed to acquire 915 locomotives by 2008. Through December 31, 2003, BNSF has taken delivery of 281 of
the 915 locomotives. Most of the locomotives were financed through a combination of cash from operations and
operating leases. The remaining locomotives under these agreements will be financed from one or a combination of
sources including, but not limited to, cash from operations, capital or operating leases and debrt issuances. The decision
on the method used for a particular acquisitton financing will depend on market conditions and other factors at the rime.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Ner cash used for financing activities during 2003 was $489 million primarily related to common stock repurchases of
$217 million, dividend payments of $191 million and net repayments of $151 million partially offser by proceeds from
stock options exercised of $68 million.

Aggregate debt to mature in 2004 is $244 million. BNSF’s ratio of net debt to total capitalization (net debr is calculated
as total debt less cash and cash equivalents, and total capitalization is calculated as the sum of net debt and rtoral
stockholders™ equity) was 44.0 percent at December 31, 2003, compared with 46.1 percent at December 31, 2002, and
45.8 percent at December 31, 2001.

2003

The Company exercised an option to call $150 million of 7.50 percent bonds due July 2023. The bonds were called at a
price of 103.02 percent of par and commercial paper was used to fund the call.

BNSF issued $250 million of 4.30 percent notes due July 1, 2013. The net proceeds of the debt issuance were used for
general corporate purposes including the repayment of outstanding commercial paper.

The Company exercised an option to call $29 million of 2.63 percent mortgage bonds issued by a predecessor company
and due January 1, 2010. Cash generated from operations was used to fund the call.

BNSF had $750 million of debt capacity available under its shelf registration at December 31, 2003.

2002

The Company financed the construction of an intermodal facility by a third party and entered into an agreement to lease
the intermodal facility for 20 years. This lease transaction is accounted for as a financing and has a purchase option. The
Company recorded an asset in property and equipment, net and a liability in long-term debt and commercial paper of
$138 million which represents the fair market value at lease inception.




BNSE issued $300 million of 5.90 percent notes due July 1, 2012. The net proceeds of the debt issuance were used for
general corporate purposes including the repayment of outstanding commercial paper.

DIVIDENDS

Common stock dividends declared were $0.54 per share annually for 2003 and $0.48 per share annually for 2002 and
2001. Dividends paid on common stock were $191 million, $183 million and $190 million during 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

COMMON STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

In July 1997, the Board authorized the repurchase of up to 30 million shares of the Company’s common stock from
time to time in the open market. In December 1999, April 2000, September 2000 and January 2003, the Board
authorized extensions of the BNSF share repurchase program, adding 30 million shares at each date to the total shares
previously authorized bringing BNSF’s share repurchase program to 150 million shares. During 2003, 2002 and 2001,
the Company repurchased approximately 8 million, 13 million, and 11 million shares, respectively, of its common stock
at average prices of $27.25 per share, $27.85 per share, and $27.76 per share, respectively. Total repurchases through
December 31, 2003, were 124 million shares at a total average cost of $26.05 per share, leaving 26 million shares
available for repurchase out of the 150 million shares presently authorized.

LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS

The Company’s business is capital intensive. BNSF has historically generated a significant amount of cash from
operating activities which it uses to fund capital additions, service debt, repurchase shares and pay dividends.
Additionally, the Company relies on access to the debt and leasing markets to finance a portion of capital additions on a
long-term basis.

The Company utilizes a commercial paper program backed by bank revolving credit agreements to manage liquidity
needs. The information below summarizes the more significant obligations of the Company at December 31, 2003. For
2004 and the foreseeable future, the Company expects that cash from operating activities, access to capital markets and
bank revolving credit agreements will be sufficient to enable the Company to meet its obligations when due. The
Company believes these sources of funds will also be sufficient to fund capiral additions that are necessary to maintain its
competitiveness and position the Company for future revenue growth.

The Company’s ratio of earnings to fixed charges was 3.00 and 2.93 times for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Additionally, the Company’s ratio of net cash provided by operating activities divided by total average
debt was 33 percent and 31 percent for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The following table summarizes the Company’s obligations under long-term debr and other contractual commitments at
December 31, 2003 (in millions):

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS TOTAL | LESS THAN 1 YEAR 1-3 YEARS 3-5 YEARS  MORE THAN 5 YEARS
Long-term debt $ 6,072 B $ 167 $ 728 $ 679 $ 4,498
Capital lease obligations 612 77 166 155 214
Operating lease 5,346 437 851 732 3,326
Purchase obligations 6,321 1,054 843 837 3,587

Other long-term liabilities

reflected on the balance sheet
under GAAP © 221 77 53 34 57
Total contractual obligations $18,572 $ 1,812 $ 2,641 $ 2,437 $11,682

(@)  Excludes capital lease obligations.
(6)  Gross payments due which include an interest component.
(c)  Includes shore-line minimum usage commitments, asset masntenance and other purchase commitments.

(d)  Consists of employee merger and separation payments as discussed in Note 11 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements, required pension plan
contributions as discussed under the heading “Pension Funding” and actuarially estimated payments expected to be made for other post-retirement
benefit plans as discussed in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In the normal course of business, the Company enters into long-term contractual requirements for future goods and
services needed for the operations of the business. Such commitments are not in excess of expected requirements and are
not reasonably likely to result in performance penalties or payments that would have a marerial adverse effect on the

Company’s liquidity.

CREDIT AGREEMENTS

Commercial paper and the revolving credit agreements are discussed in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The revolving credit agreements include covenants and events of default typical for this type of facility,
including a minimum consolidated tangible net worth test, a maximum debt-to-capital test, and a $75 million cross-
default provision. At December 31, 2003, the Company was in compliance with its debt covenants. BNSF's tangible net
worth is $2.9 billion greater than the minimum consolidated tangible net worth required under the agreement, and the
maximum debt-to-capital test provides approximately $5.4 billion of debt capacity above BNSF’s outstanding debr as of
December 31, 2003, before an event of default would occur under these covenants. With the exception of a voluntary
bankruptcy or insolvency, any event of default has either ot both a cure period or notice requirement before termination
of the agreements. A voluntary bankruptcy or insolvency would be considered an immediate termination event.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

SALE OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable sales program of Santa Fe Receivables Corporation (SFRC), as described in Note 6 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, includes various provisions that, if triggered, would allow the investors participating
in this program, at their option, to cancel the program. These provisions include a minimum consolidated tangible net
worth test and a maximum debt-to-capital test which are the same as in the BNSF revolving credit agreements. At
December 31, 2003, investor interests of $625 million, were outstanding under the $700 million accounts receivable
facilicy. SFRC renewed $350 million of the $700 million accounts receivables facility, effective in June 2003, for an
additional 364 days. In addition, SFRC entered into a separate $350 million accounts receivables facility, effective June
2003, with a five-year term. The commitment of the investors to purchase undivided interests under the accounts
receivable sales program is currently scheduled to expire in June 2004 and June 2008, respectively. Management expects
to be able to cither extend the commitment of the current investors under the accounts receivable sales program past
June 2004 or to find additional investors in the accounts receivable sales program who will be committed to purchase
undivided interests after June 2004.

The accounts receivable sales program provides efficient financing at a competitive interest rate to traditional borrowing
arrangements. Since the funding is collateralized by BNSF receivables, the risk of exposure is only as great as the risk of
default on these receivables. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

GUARANTEES

BNSF agreed to guarantee approximately $85 million of debt, of which $50 million was outstanding as of December 31,
2003. The proceeds from the debt are being used to construct and operate a 13-mile railroad, which will service several
chemical and plastics manufacturing facilities in the Houston, Texas area. Due to evolving circumstances, the timeline of
completion for this railroad line is uncerrain. As discussed in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the San
Jacinto Partnership will likely be consolidated on March 31, 2004.

The Company acts as guarantor for certain other debt and lease obligations of others. During the year ended December
31, 2003, the Company has primarily utilized guarantees to allow third-party entities to obtain favorable terms to
finance the construction of assets that will benefit the Company. Addicionally, in the ordinary course of business, BNSF
enters into agreements with third parties that include indemnification clauses. The Company does not expect
performance under these guarantees or indemnities to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s liquidity in the
foreseeable future. See Note 9 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PENSION FUNDING

The Company will make required contributions of approximately $20 million to the qualified BNSF Retirement Plan in
2004.
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INFLATION

Due to the capital-intensive nature of BNSF’s business, the full effect of inflation is not reflected in operating expenses
because depreciation is based on historical cost. An assumption that all operating assets were depreciated at current price
levels would result in substantially greater expense than historically reported amounts.

OTHER MATTERS

HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company uses derivatives to hedge against increases in diesel fuel prices and interest rates as well as to convert a
portion of its fixed-rate long-term debt to floating-rate debt. The Company formally documents the relationship
between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for the use
of the hedging instrument. This documentation includes linking the derivatives that are designated as fair value or cash
flow hedges to specific assets or liabilities on the balance sheet, commitments or forecasted transactions. The Company
assesses at the time a derivative contract is entered into, and at least quarterly, whether the derivative item is effective in
offsetting the changes in fair value or cash flows. Any change in fair value resulting from ineffectiveness, as defined by
SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended, is recognized in current period
earnings. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain
or loss on the derivative instrument is recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI) as a separate
corhponent of stockholders’ equity and reclassified into earnings in the period during which the hedge transaction affects
earnings.

FUEL

BNSF measures the fair value of fuel hedges from data provided by various external counterparties. To value a swap, the
Company uses the forward commodity price for the period hedged. The fair values of costless collars are calculated and
provided by the corresponding counterparties. BNSF monitors its hedging positions and credit ratings of its
counterparties and does not anticipate losses due to counterparty nonperformance. See Note 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

INTEREST RATE

From time to time, the Company enters inte various interest rate hedging transactions for the purpose of managing
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and establishing rates in anticipation of future debr issuances as well as to
convert a portion of its fixed-rate long-term debt to floating-rate debt. The Company uses interest rate swaps and
treasury locks as part of its interest rate risk management strategy. BNSF’s measurement of che fair value of interest rate
swaps and treasury locks is based on estimates of the mid-marker values for the transactions provided by the
counterparties to these agreements. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

EMPLOYEE AND LABOR RELATIONS

Approximately 87 percent of BNSF Railway’s employees are union-represented. BNSF Railway’s union employees work
under collective bargaining agreements with various different labor organizations. The negotiating process for new, major
collective bargaining agreements covering all of BNSF Railway’s union employees has been underway since the
bargaining round was initiated November 1, 1999. Wages, health and welfare benefits, work rules, and other issues have
traditionally been addressed through industry-wide negotiations. These negotiations have generally taken place over a
number of months and have previously not resulted in any extended work stoppages. The existing agreements have
remained in effect and will continue to remain in effect until new agreements are reached or the Railway Labor Act’s
procedures (which include mediation, cooling-off periods, and the possibility of Presidential intervention) are exhausted.
The current agreements provide for periodic wage increases until new agreements are reached.

BROTHERHOOD OF LOCOMOTIVE ENGINEERS

In October 2003, the NCCC and Brotherhood of Locomotive Engineers (BLE) settled wage, work rule and benefit
issues through 2004, subject to union membership ratification. That process was concluded successfully in December
2003. The “national” agreement covers approximately 20 percent of BNSF’s unionized workforce. BNSF and BLE
concurrently finalized a separate “local” agreement substituting a new profit sharing bonus arrangement for a portion of
the wage increases otherwise provided for by the “national” agreement.
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BROTHERHOQD OF RAILROAD SIGNALMEN

In September 2003, the NCCC reached an agreement with the Brotherhood of Railroad Signalmen (BRS) settling wage,
work rule and benefit issues through 2004. The agreement was ratified by the union’s members in September 2003. BRS
represents BNSF’s signal system maintenance employees, who comprise approximately 5 percent of the unionized
workforce.

TRANSPORTATION COMMUNICATIONS UNION

In late 2002, the NCCC reached a final agreement with the Transportation Communications Union (TCU) providing
for final and binding arbitration of wage and benefit issues through 2004. This agreement averted the possibility of self
help by the parties over bargaining round issues. The arbitration decision was issued in January 2003 and settled all
wage, work rule and medical benefit issues between the parties through 2004. TCU represents BNSF’s clerks, carmen
and patrolmen, who make up about 15 percent of BNSF’s unionized workforce.

UNITED TRANSPORTATION UNION

The NCCC reached a “national” agreement in August 2002, with the United Transportation Union (UTU) covering
wage, work rule, and locomotive remote control issues through the year 2004 for conductors, brakemen, yardmen,
yardmasters and firemen. The “national” agreement also created a final and binding process for resolving health and
welfare issues, mainly involving employees sharing in rising benefit costs. The “national” agreement committed each side
to participate in a study and negotiation period, during which the parties were to examine alternate ways to control rising
healthcare costs. The parties met extensively on this issue though the third quarter of 2003, and reached a tentative
contract resolving the health and welfare related issues. The contract was ratified by the UTU’s members in November

2003.

When the bargaining round began in 1999, two of the nine BNSF UTU general chairmen contested what BNSF has
believed from the outset was their obligation to address wage, work rule and benefits issues in industry-wide bargaining.
This matter became the subject of litigation in federal court in the District of Columbia. The court of appeals there
sustained BNSF’s position on the key legal principle, remanding the matter to a lower court for application of the law to
the particular facts presented in the case. While the litigation was pending, BNSF did not effectuate the “national”
agreement’s terms in connection with employees represented by the two general chairmen involved. The lower court
issued its decision in November 2003, in BNSF’s favor. As the Company requested, the court ordered application of the
“national” agreement in the case of all employees represented by the two general chairmen above, as a full and final
settlement of the bargaining round. No appeal was made, and, thus, the litigation has brought the bargaining round to a
formal close with all of BNSF’s UTU-represented employees, who represent approximately 25 percent of the Company’s
unionized workforce.

OTHER UNIONS

The Brotherhood of Maintenance of Way Employees (representing approximately 20 percent of BNSF’s unionized
workforce) reached an agreement with BNSF in the spring of 2001.

Through the NCCC, BNSF is continuing efforts to settle the bargaining with the International Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers, International Association of Machinists, Sheet Metal Workers’ International Association, National
Conference of Firemen and Oilers, and American Train Dispatchers Association, which together represent
approximately 15 percent of the Company’s unionized workforce.
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RAILROAD RETIREMENT REFORM

Railroad industry personnel are covered by the Railroad Retirement System instead of Social Security. BNSF Railway’s
contributions under the Railroad Retirement System have been approximately triple those in industries covered by Social
Security. The Railroad Retirement System, funded primarily by payroll taxes on covered employers and employees,
includes a benefit roughly equivalent to Social Security (Tier I), an additional benefit similar to that allowed in some
private defined-benefir plans (Tier II), and other benefits. Investment of Tier II Railroad Retirement assets had, until
2001, been limited to special interest-bearing U. S. Treasury securities. The Railroad Retirement and Survivors’
Improvement Act of 2001 (Act) creates a new National Railroad Retirement Investment Trust to hold Tier I Railroad
Retirement assets and empowers the trustees to invest these assets in the same types of investments available to private
sector retirement plans. In addition to liberalizing certain retirement benefit requirements for rail employees, the Act
reduced Tier II Railroad Retirement tax rates on rail employers beginning in 2002 and eliminated a supplemental
annuity tax. In 2002, the Company realized savings of approximately $20 million. Additionally, the Company realized
incremental savings of approximately $30 million in 2003. The Company expects to realize further savings in 2004 of
approximately $20 million for a toral ongoing savings of approximately $70 million. Future adjustments in the Tier II
Railroad Retirement tax rates assessed will depend on Railroad Retirement fund levels.

SEATTLE SOUND TRANSIT

In December 2003, the Company entered into several agreements with Central Puget Sound Regional Transit Authority
(Sound Transit), a government authority, established by King, Pierce and Snohomish counties within the state of
Washington. BNSF has agreed to sell to Sound Transit under the threat of condemnation a combination of (a) four
easements enabling Sound Transit to offer commuter rail service over the existing BNSF track from Searttle to Everett
and (b) 18 miles of railroad line from south of Tacoma to Nisqually, Washington.

Sound Transit will pay BNSF approximately $260 million for four commuter easements to operate trains on the
segment berween Seattle and Everett, and entered into agreements for service on the commuter easements, and joint use
of track for commuter and freight purposes. The Company received approximately $80 million of cash in 2003 upon the
closing of the first easement, which will be recognized in income over the use of the associated track structure
(approximately 30 years). Over the next four vears, upon the subsequent closings subject to conditions in the sale
agreement, BNSF will receive an additional $180 million for the remaining three easements, including approximately
$80 million expected to be paid in 2004.

Sound Transit will also pay BNSF to convey the 18 miles of railroad line and associated real estate from south of Tacoma
to Nisqually in three separate sell transactions. The Company received approximately $8 million of cash in 2003 and
reported a gain in income of approximately $2 million, net of tax, as a result of the real estate sale for station related
parcels to Sound Transit. Additionally, the Company expects to receive approximately $24 million for the remaining
railroad line and real estate sales associated with these agreements over the next four years, including approximately $6
million expected to be paid in 2004. The Company expects total related gains of about $25 million to be recognized in
future periods, the majority of which is currently anticipated to be recognized in the next two years.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the ordinary course of business, the Company makes a number of estimates and assumptions related to the reporting
of results of operations and financial position in the preparation of its financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ significantly from those
estimates under different assumptions and conditions. The following discussion addresses the Company’s most critical
accounting estimates.

Management has discussed the development and selection of the critical accounting estimates described below with the

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s disclosure relating to
it in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. -
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LEGAL

BNSF and its subsidiaries are parties to a number of legal actions and claims, various governmental proceedings and
private civil suits arising in the ordinary course of business, including those related to environmental matters, Federal
Employers’ Liability Act claims by BNSF Railway employees, other personal injury claims, and disputes and complaints
involving certain transportation rates and charges (including complaints secking refunds of prior charges paid for coal
transportation and the prescription of future rates for such movements). Some of the legal proceedings include claims for
punitive as well as compensatory damages, and a few proceedings purport to be class actions. While the final outcome of
these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, considering among other things the meritorious legal defenses available
and liabilities that have been recorded along with applicable insurance, it is the opinion of BNSF’s management that
none of these items will have a material adverse effect on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity of
BNSF. However, an unexpected adverse resolution of one or more of these items could have a material adverse effect on
the results of operations in a particular quarter or fiscal year.

BNSF’s most significant claims relate to personal injury and environmental matters. These claims are discussed in more
detail below.

PERSONAL INJURY

Personal injury claims, including work-related injuries to employees, are a significant expense for the railroad industry.
Employees of BNSF are compensated for work-related injuries according to the provisions of the Federal Employers’
Liability Act (FELA). FELA’s system of requiring the finding of fault, coupled with unscheduled awards and reliance on
the jury system, contributed to significant increases in expense in past years. BNSF has implemented a number of safety
programs to reduce the number of personal injuries as well as the associated claims and personal injury expense. The
Company recognized personal injury expenses of approximately $215 million, $228 million and $195 million in 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. BNSF made payments for personal injuries of approximately $198 million, $190 million
and $173 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had recorded
liabilities of $513 million and $496 million, respectively, related to personal injury claims. Of these amounts, $200
million and $197 million are included in current liabilities in 2003 and 2002, respectively. BNSF’s liabilities for personal
injury claims are undiscounted.

CRITICAL ESTIMATE

The Company uses a third party actuarial firm that performs actuarial reviews to assist the Company in estimating its
personal injury claims. These estimates are based on the covered population, activity levels and trends in the frequency,
and the costs of covered injuries. Personal injury liability and ultimate expense projections are estimated using standard
actuarial methodologies. These actuarial method procedures include unasserted claims, except for certain occupational
illnesses, which, due to their unpredictability, are accrued on an as reported basis.

The Company has not materially changed its methodology for calculating personal injury liabilities in the three years

presented. There are currently no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that are reasonably
likely to occur and materially affect the methodology or assumptions described above.
y y gy P
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Company’s operations, as well as those of its competitors, are subject to extensive federal, state and local
environmental regulation. BNSF’s operating procedures include practices to protect the environment from the risks
inherent in railroad operations, which frequently involve transporting chemicals and other hazardous macerials.
Additionally, many of BNSF’s land holdings are and have been used for industrial or transportation-related purposes or
leased to commercial or industrial companies whose activities may have resulted in discharges onto the property. As a
result, BNSF is subject to environmental cleanup and enforcement actions. In particular, the Federal Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liabilicy Act of 1980 (CERCLA), also known as the Superfund law, as
well as similar state laws generally impose joint and several liability for cleanup and enforcement costs on current and
former owners and operators of a site without regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct. BNSF has been
notified that it is a potentially responsible party (PRP} for study and cleanup costs at approximately 20 Superfund sites
for which investigation and remediation payments are or will be made or are yet to be determined (the Superfund sites)
and, in many instances, is one of several PRPs. In addition, BNSF may be considered a PRP under certain other laws.
Accordingly, under CERCLA and other federal and state statutes, BNSF may be held jointly and severally liable for all
environmental costs associated with a pardcular site. If there are other PRPs, BNSF generally participates in the cleanup
of these sites through cost-sharing agreements with terms that vary from site to site. Costs are typically allocated based on
relative volumetric contribution of material, the amount of time the site was owned or operated, and/or the portion of
the total site owned or operated by each PRP.

Environmental costs include inicial site surveys and environmental studies of potentially contaminated sites as well as
costs for remediation and restoration of sites determined to be contaminated. Liabilities for environmental cleanup costs
are initally recorded when BNSF’s liability for environmental cleanup is both probable and a reasonable estimate of
associated costs can be made. Adjustments to initial estimates are recorded as necessary based upon additional
information developed in subsequent periods. BNSF conducts an ongoing environmental contingency analysis, which
considers a combination of factors including independent consulting reports, site visits, legal reviews, analysis of the
likelihood of participation in and the ability of other PRPs to pay for cleanup, and historical trend analyses.

Environmental related expenses are a significant expense for BNSF and the railroad industry. BNSF is involved in a
number of administrative and judicial proceedings and other mandatory cleanup efforts at approximately 430 sites,
including the Superfund sites, at which it is participating in the study or cleanup, or both, of alleged environmental
contamination. The Company recognized environmental expenses of approximately $59 million, $43 million and $51
million during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. BNSF paid approximately $56 million, $49 million and $72 million
during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, for mandatory and unasserted claims cleanup efforts, including amounts
expended under federal and state voluntary cleanup programs. BNSF has recorded liabilities for remediation and
restoration of all known sites of $199 million at December 31, 2003, compared with $196 million at December 31,
2002. Of these amounts, $50 million and $51 million, respectively, are included in current liabilities. BNSF’s
environmental liabilities are not discounted. BNSF anticipates that the majority of the accrued costs at December 31,
2003, will be paid over the next five years and no individual site is considered to be material.

CRITICAL ESTIMATE

Liabilites recorded for environmental costs represent BNSF’s best estimates for remediation and restoration of these sites
and include both asserted and unasserted claims. Unasserted claims are not considered to be a material component of the
liability. Although recorded liabilities include BNSF’s best estimates of all costs, without reduction for anticipated
recoveries from third parties, BNSF’s total cleanup costs at these sites cannot be predicred with certainty due to various
factors such as the extent of corrective actions that may be required, evolving environmental laws and regulations,
advances in environmental technology, the extent of other parties’ participation in cleanup efforts, developments in
ongoing environmental analyses related to sites determined to be contaminated, and developments in environmental
surveys and studies of potentially contaminated sites. As a result, future charges to income for environmental liabilities
could have a significant effect on results of operations in a particular quarter or fiscal year as individual site studies and
remediation and restoration efforts proceed or as new sites arise. However, the Company believes it is unlikely any
identified marters, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a marterial adverse effect on BNSF’s results of
operations, financial position or liquidity.

The Company has not materially changed its methodology for identifying and calculating environmental liabilities in the

three years presented. There are currently no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that are
reasonably likely to occur and materially affect the methodology or assumptions described above.
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INCOME TAXES

BNSF is subject to various federal, state and local income taxes in the taxing jurisdictions where the Company operates.
BNSF accounts for income taxes by providing for taxes payable or refundable in the current year and for deferred tax
assets and liabilities for future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in financial statements or tax returns.

BNSF recorded total income tax expense, including federal, state and other income taxes, of $454 million, $456 million,
and $442 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. BNSF's Consolidated Balance
Sheets reflect $292 million and $314 million of net current deferred tax assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Also included in BNSF’s Consolidated Balance Sheets are $7,481 million and $6,973 million of net non-
current deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Classification of deferred tax assets and
liabilities as current or non-current is determined by the financial statement classification of the asset or liability to which
the temporary difference is related. If a temporary difference is not related to an asset or liability for financial reporting, it
is classified according to the expected reversal date of the temporary difference.

Valuation allowances are established to reduce deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that some or all of the
deferred tax asset will not be realized. BNSF has not recorded a valuation allowance, as it believes that the deferred tax
assets will be fully realized in the future.

The federal income tax returns of BNSF’s predecessor companies, Burlington Northern, Inc. and Santa Fe Pacific
Corporation are closed through 1994 and the business combination date of September 1995, respectively. BNSF is
currently under Internal Revenue Service examination for years 1995 through 1999. In addition, BNSF and its
subsidiaries have various state income tax returns in the process of examination, administrative appeal or litigation. The
Company believes that adequate provision has been made for any adjustments that might be assessed for open years

through 2003.

CRITICAL ESTIMATE

BNSF makes estimates of the potential liability based on its assessment of all potential tax exposures. In addition, the
Company uses factors such as applicable law, current information, and past experience with similar issues to make these
judgements.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that apply to taxable income in the period in which the
deferred tax asset or liability is expected to be realized or paid. Changes in the Company’s estimates regarding the
statutory tax rate to be applied to the reversal of deferred tax assets and liabilities could materially affect the effective tax
rate.

The Company has not materially changed its methodology for calculating income tax expense for the years presented
and there are currently no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that are reasonably likely to
occur and materially affect the methodology or assumptions described above.

PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

BNSF sponsors a noncontributory qualified BNSF Retirement Plan, which covers substantially all non-union employees
and a nonqualified BNSF Supplemental Retirement Plan, which covers certain officers and other employees. The
benefits under these plans are based on years of credited service and the highest five-year average compensation levels.
BNSF’s funding policy is to contribute annually not less than the regulatory minimum and not more than the maximum
amount deductible for income tax purposes with respect to the funded plan.

Certain salaried employees of BNSFE that have met age and years of service requirements are eligible for medical benefits
and life insurance coverage during retirement. The retiree medical plan is contributory and provides benefits to retirees,
their covered dependents and beneficiaries. Retiree contributions are adjusted annually. The plan also contains fixed
deductibles, coinsurance and out-of-pocket limitations. The basic life insurance plan is noncontributory and covers
retirees only. Optional life insurance coverage is available for some retirees; however, the retiree is responsible for the full
cost. BNSF’s policy is to fund benefits payable under the medical and life insurance plans as they come due. Employees
beginning salaried employment with BNSF subsequent to September 22, 1995, are not eligible for medical benefirs
during retirement.
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The Company expects to record a net pension cost of approximately $15 million in 2004 as opposed to net pension
benefits of $3 million and $7 million recorded in 2003 and 2002, respectively. In addition, the Company recorded a net
pension cost of $10 million in 2001. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company reported pension benefit
obligations of $1,678 million and $1,611 million, respectively. The Company recorded a net other post-employment
benefits (OPEB) cost of $32 million, $30 million and $25 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. At December 31, 2003 and 2002 the Company reported OPEB obligations of $366 million and
$363 million, respectively.

CRITICAL ESTIMATE

Annual pension and OPEB expenses are calculated by third party actuaries using standard actuarial methodologies. The
actuaries assist the Company in making estimates based on historical information, current information and estimates
about future events and circumstances. Significant assumptions used in the valuation of pension and OPEB include
expected return on plan assets, discount rate, rate of increase in compensation levels and the health care cost trend rate.
These assumptions are critical to the Company’s estimate of expenses and liabiliries, and changes to these estimates could
have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations and financial position.

The discount rate is a component estimate of both pensions and OPEB. The expected return on plan assets is a factor
that only influences the funded pension plans. Health care cost trend rates only affect OPEB costs. BNSF uses a discount
rate chat reflects the current bond market and an expected rate of return on assets that reflects the expected long-term
rates of return on plan assets.

From time to time, the Company will change pension and OPEB assumptions to better approximate current conditions
and expected future experience. General softness in the economy and the decline in the investment markets during 2001
and 2000 prompted BNSF to decrease the rate of return on plan assets used in the net cost calculation from 9.5 percent
in 2001 to 8.5 percent for 2002 and 2003. The discount rate has also been changed within the past three years. Discount
rates of 6.5 percent, 7.0 percent and 7.0 percent were used to calculate net benefit costs for years ending December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The associated discount rate was lowered to 6.0 percent for the 2004 calculation of
net benefic cost. Unforeseen changes in the investment markets or other external factors could prompt changes in these
estimates in future years. A fifty basis point change in the rate of return on plan assets assumption would effect future
annual pension expense by approximately $7 million.

DEPRECIATION

Due to the capital-intensive nature of the railroad industry, depreciation expense is a significant component of the
Company’s operating expense. The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $910 million, $931
million and $909 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2003
and 2002, the Company had Property and equipment, net balances of $25,068 million and $24,022 million, which
include $6,006 million and $4,883 million, respectively, of accumulated depreciation.

CRITICAL ESTIMATE

The Company uses the group method of depreciation under which a smgle depreciation rate is applied to the gross
investment in a particular class of property, despite differences in the service life or salvage value of individual property
units within the same class. As required by the Federal Surface Transportation Board (STB), the Company conducts
studies of depreciation rates and the required accumulated depreciation balance at least every three years for equipment
property and at least every six years for track structure and other roadway property. The Company uses external
consultants to conduct these studies. The consultants rely on statistical analysis, historical retirement data, industry
knowledge and discussions with management to assess the impact of new technologies and maintenance practices.
Changes in the estimated service lives of the assets and their related depreciation rates are implemented prospectively and
the difference between the calculated accumulated depreciation and the amount recorded is amortized over the average
service lives of the assets.

A study conducted in 2003 resulted in the Company adopting new depreciation rates for hardware and software, other
road assets and locomotives that resulted in a net decrease in annual depreciation expense of $9 million.

ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information about recent accounting pronouncements.
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

To the extent that statements made by the Company relate to the Company’s future economic performance or business
outlook, projections or expectations of financial or operational results, or refer to matters that are not historical facts,
such statements are “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws. Forward-looking
statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties, and actual resules may differ materially. Important factors that
could cause acrual results to differ materially include, but are not limited to, economic and industry conditions: material
adverse changes in economic or industry conditions, both in the United States and globally, customer demand, effects of
adverse economic conditions affecting shippers, adverse economic conditions in the industries and geographic areas that
produce and consume freight, competition and consolidation within the transportation industry, the extent to which
BNSF is successful in gaining new long-term relationships with customets or retaining existing ones, changes in fuel
prices, changes in the securities and capital markets, and changes in labor costs and labor difficulties, including stoppages
affecting either BNSF’s operations or our customers’ abilities to deliver goods to BNSF for shipment; legal and regulatory
factors: developments and changes in laws and regulations and the ultimate outcome of shipper and rate claims subject to
adjudication, environmental investigations or proceedings and other types of claims and litigation; and operazing facrors:
technical difficulties, changes in operating conditions and costs, competition, and commodity concentrations, the
Company’s ability to achieve its operational and financial initiatives and to contain costs, as well as natural events such as
severe weather, floods and earthquakes or other disruptions of BNSF Railway’s operating systems, structures, or
equipment.

The Company cautions against placing undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which reflect its current beliefs
and are based on information currently available to it as of the date a forward-looking statement is made. The Company
undertakes no obligation to revise forward-looking statements to reflect future events, changes in circumstances, or
changes in beliefs. In the event the Company does update any forward-looking statement, no inference should be made
that the Company will make additional updates with respect to that statement, related matters, or any other forward-
looking statements. Any corrections or revisions may appeat in the Company’s public filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, which are accessible ar www.sec.gov and on the Company’s website at www.bnsf.com, and
which investors are advised to consult.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In the ordinary course of business, BNSF utilizes various financial instruments that inherently have some degree of
market risk. The information presented in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations section and Notes 3 and 9 of the Consolidated Financial Statements describe significant aspects of
BNSF’s financial instrument programs which have a material market risk.

COMMODITY PRICE SENSITIVITY

BNSF has a program to hedge against fluctuations in the price of its diesel fuel purchases. Existing hedge transactions as
of December 31, 2003, are based on the front month settlement prices of NYMEX #2 heating oil (HO), West Texas
Intermediate crude oil (WTI), or the HO refining spread (HO-WTI) which is defined as the difference between HO
and WTI. A WTI hedge combined with a HO-WTTI hedge will result in the equivalent of a HO hedge. For swaps,
BINSE either pays or receives the difference between the hedge price and the actual average price of the hedge commodity
during a specified determination period for a specified number of gallons. For costless collars, if the average hedge
commodity price for a specified determination period is greater than the cap price, BNSF receives the difference for a
specified number of gallons. If the average commodity price is less than the floor price, BNSF pays the difference for a
specitied number of gallons. If the commodity price is berween the tloor price and the cap price, BNSF neither makes
nor receives a payment. Hedge transactions are generally settled with the counterparty in cash. Based on historical
information, BNSF believes there is a significant correlation between the market prices for diesel fuel, WTI, and HO.
Further information on fuel hedges is incorporated by reference from Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2003, BNSF maintained fuel inventories for use in normal operations which were not marterial to
BNSF’s overall financial position and, therefore, represent no significant market exposure.
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

From time to time, BNSF enters into various interest rate hedging transactions for purposes of managing exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and establishing rates in anticipation of future debt issuances as well as to convert a portion
of its fixed-rate long-term debt to floating-rate debt. These interest rate hedges are accounted for cither as cash flow or
fair value hedges. BNSF’s measurement of fair value of these hedges are based on estimates of the mid-market values for
the transactions provided by the counterparties to these agreements. Further information on interest rate hedges is
incorporated by reference from Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Information on the Company’s debt which may be sensitive to interest rate fluctuations is incorporated by reference
from Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.




ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Consolidated Financial Statements of BNSF and subsidiary companies, together with the report of independent
auditors, are included as part of this filing.

The following documents are filed as a part of this report:

CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PAGE
Report of Independent Auditors 29
Consolidated Statements of Income for the three years ended December 31, 2003 30
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 31
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended December 31, 2003 32
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders” Equity for the three years ended December 31, 2003 33
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 34-59
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Report of Independent Auditors

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation and subsidiary companies at December 31,
2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Srates of America. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2003, the Company changed the
manner in which it accounts for asset retirement costs that are not legal obligations.

Prctisedihocsesozone P

FORT WORTH, TEXAS
FEBRUARY 11, 2004
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BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 | 2002 2001
|
Revenues $9,413 $8,979 $9,208
Operating expenses:
Compensation and benefits 2,964 2,894 2,861
Purchased services 1,253 1,146 1,090
Depreciation and amortization 910 931 909
Equipment rents 705 698 736
Fuel 1,073 833 973
Materials and other 843 821 889
Total operating expenses 7,748 7,323 7,458
Operating income 1,665 1,656 1,750
Interest expense 420 428 463
Other expense, net 14 | 12 114
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change 1,231 . 1,216 1,173
Income tax expense 454 456 442
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 777 $ 760 § 731
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax 39 - -
Net income $ 816 % 760 § 731
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share (before cumulative effect of accounting change) $ 2.10 $ 2.01 $ 1.89
Basic earnings per share (after cumulative effect of accounting change) $ 2.21 $ 2.01 $ 1.89
Diluted earnings per share (before cumulative effect of accounting change) $ 2.09 $ 2.00 $ 1.87
Diluted earnings per share (after cumulative effect of accounting change) $ 219 § 2.00 $ 1.87
Average shares (in millions):
Basic 369.1 378.0 387.3
Dilutive effect of stock awards 3.2 2.8 3.4
Diluted 372.3 380.8 390.7

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE CORPCRATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in millions, shares in thousands)

DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002
ASSETS
Current assets: !
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18 ]‘ $ 28
Accounts receivable, net 129 141
“"Materials and supplies 266 226
Current portion of deferred income taxes 292 314
-Orther current assets 157 82
Total current assets 862 791
Property and equipment, net 25,068 24,022
Other assets 1,009 954
Tortal assets $26,939 $25,767
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 2,102 $ 1,918
Long-term debt due within one year 244 173
Total current liabilities 2,346 2,091
Long-term debt and commercial paper 6,440 6,641
Deferred income taxes 7,481 6,975
Casualty and environmental liabilities 462 444
Minimum pension liability 359 368
Employee merger and separation costs 144 170
Orther liabilities 1,212 | 1,146
Total liabilities 18,444 17,835
Commitments and contingencies (see Notes 3, 9 and 10)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value 600,000 shares authorized;

500,685 shares and 496,683 shares issued, respectively 5 5
Additional paid-in-capiral 5,766 5,664
Retained earnings 6,240 5,625
Treasury stock, at cost, 129,225 shares and 126,905 shares, respectively (3,340) (3,114)
Unearned compensation (36) (39)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (140) (209)

Total stockholders” equity 8,495 7,932

Total liabilities and stockholders” equity $26,939 $25,767

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in millions)

_(55)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 816 § 760 $ 731
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 910 931 909
Deferred income taxes 460 432 302
Employee merger and separation costs paid _(43) | (55 .
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (39) - -
Other, net 48 9) 91
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net 12 31 142
Materials and supplies (39) (25) 29
Orther current assets 5 (28) 103
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 155 69 (55)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,285 2,106 2,197
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capirtal expenditures (1,726) (1,358) (1,459)
Other, net (80) (159) (105)
Net cash used for investing activities (1,806) (1,517) (1,564)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net decrease in commercial paper and bank borrowings 77) (96) (226)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 265 300 400
Payments on long-term debt (339) (294) (380)
Dividends paid (191) (183) (190)
Proceeds from stock options exercised 68 40 113
Purchase of BNSF common stock (217) (353) (317)
Other, net 2 (1) (18)
Net cash used for financing activities (489) (587) (618)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (10) 2 15
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 28 26 11
End of year $ 18 $ 28 $ 26
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION ]
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized $ 458 $ 463 $ 494
Income taxes paid, net of refunds $ 26 Z $ 55 $ 102
Non-cash facilities financing $ - Q $ 138 $ -

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(Shares in thousands, dollars in millions, except per share data)

! ACCUMULATED
COMMON OTHER COM- TOTAL
STQOCK AND UNEARNED  PREHENSIVE STOCK-
COMMON TREASURY } PAIDIN RETAINED TREASURY  COMPEN- INCOME  HOLDERS'
SHARES SHARES CAPTAL  EARNINGS STOCK SATION (L0SS) EQUITY
Balance at December 31, 2000 486,637  (95,045) [ $5,433 $4,505 $(2,413) $(35) $(10) §7,480
Comprehensive income: }
Net income ( - 731 - - - 731
Minimum pension liability adjustment,
net of tax expense of $1 ] - - - - 2 2
Cumulative effect of adoption of SFAS ‘
No. 133, net of tax expense of $36 - - - - 58 58
Other, net of tax benefit of $36 J - - - - (59) (39)
Total comprehensive income [ - 731 - - 1 732
Common stock dividends, $0.48 per share - - i - (188) - - - (188)
Adjustments associated with unearned |
compensation, restricted stock 899 (86) | 15 - - 1 - 16
Exercise of stock options and related tax
benefit of $17 5,282 (478) 141 - (15) - - 126
Purchase of BNSF comman stock - (11,432 | - - 61y - - 617
Balance at December 31, 2001 492,818 (107,041) | $5,589 $5,048 $(2,745) $(34) $(9) $7.,849
Comprehensive income: f
Net income ; - 760 - - - 760
Minimum pension liability adjustment, 1
net of tax benefit of $136 \ - - - - (220) (220)
Other, net of tax expense of $12 - - - - 20 20
Total comprehensive income - 760 - - (200) 560
Common stock dividends, $0.48 per share - - - (183) - - - (183)
Adjustments associated with unearned \
compensation, restricted stock 1,527 (634) { 25 - - (5) - 20
Exercise of stock options and ‘
related tax benefit of $6 2,338 (555) J 35 - (16) - - 39
Purchase of BNSF common stock - (12,675) | - - (353) - - (353)
Balance at December 31, 2002 496,683 (120,905) | $5,669 $5,625 $(3,114) $(39) $(209) $7,932
Comprehensive income: |
Net income ( - 816 - - - 816
Minimum pension liability adjustment,
net of tax expense of $3 | - - - - 6 6
Other, net of tax expense of $38 \ - - - - 63 63
Total comprehensive income [ - 816 - - 69 885
Common stock dividends, $0.54 per share - - } - (201) - - - (201)
Adjustments associated with unearned |
compensation, restricted stock 781 (54) l 22 - - 3 - 25
Exercise of stock options and related rax J
benefit of §7 3,221 (316) | 80 - ©)] - - 71
Purchase of BNSF common stock - (7,950) L - - 217) - - (217)
Balance at December 31, 2003 500,685 (129,225) J $5,771 $6,240  $(3,340) $(306) $(140) $8,495

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. THE COMPANY

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation and its majority-owned subsidiaries, (collectively, BNSF or the Company), is
engaged primarily in management of its investment jn its principal and wholly-owned subsidiary, The Burlington
Northern and Santa Fe Railway Company (BNSF Railway), which operates one of the largest railroad networks in North
America with approximately 32,500 route miles covering 28 states and two Canadian provinces. Through one operating
transportation services segment, BNSF Railway transports a wide range of products and commodities including the
transportation of Consumer Products, Industrial Products, Coal and Agricultural Products, derived from manufacturing,
agricultural and natural resource industries, which constituted 39 percent, 23 percent, 22 percent and 16 percent,
respectively, of total freight revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of BNSF, including its principal subsidiary BNSF Railway.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE, NET OF TAX

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement
Obligations, on January 1, 2003. This statement requires BNSF to recognize a liability for legally obligared asset
retirement costs associated with tangible long-lived assets. SFAS No. 143 also disallows the accrual of retirement costs
that are not legal obligations. As a result, BNSF and other railroads were required to change their accounting policies for
certain track structure assets to exclude removal costs as a component of depreciation expense where the inclusion of
such costs would result in accumulated depreciation balances exceeding the historical basis of the assets. This change
results in lower depreciation and amortization expense primarily offsec by higher compensation and benefits, purchased
services and materials and other expenses in the period in which removal costs are incurred.

The following table presents the pro forma net income and earnings per share if SFAS No. 143 would have been applied
retroactively (in millions, except per share data):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001
Net income as reported $816 $760 $731
Pro forma net income $777 [ $749 $713
]
Earnings per share
Basic - as reported $2.21 $2.01 $1.89
Basic — pro forma $2.10 $1.98 $1.84
Diluted — as reported $2.19 [ $2.00 $1.87
Diluted - pro forma $2.09 L $1.97 $1.82

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the periods presented. Actual resules could differ from those estimates.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Transportation revenues are recognized based upon the proportion of service provided as of the balance sheet date.
Revenues from ancillary setvices are recognized when performed.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All short-term investments with original maturities of less than 90 days are considered cash equivalents. Cash equivalents
are stated at cost, which approximates market value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES

Materials and supplies, which consist mainly of rail, ties and other items for construction and maintenance of property
and equipment, as well as diesel fuel, are valued at the lower of average cost or market.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment are depreciated and amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
Company uses the group method of depreciation in which a single depreciation rate is applied to the gross investment in
a particular class of property, despite differences in the service life or salvage value of individual property units within the
same class. Upon normal sale or retirement of depreciable railroad property, cost less net salvage value is charged to
accumulated depreciation and no gain or loss is recognized. Significant premature retirements and the disposal of land
and non-rail property are recorded as gains or losses at the time of their occurrence.

The Company self-constructs portions of its track structure and rebuilds certain classes of rolling stack. In addition to
direct labor and material, certain indirect costs are capitalized. Expenditures which significantly increase asset values or
extend useful lives are capitalized. Repair and maintenance expenditures are charged to operating expense when the work
is performed. Property and equipment are stated at cost.

The Company incurs certain direct labor, contract service and other costs associated with the development and
installation of internal-use computer sofiware. Costs for newly developed software or significant enhancements to
existing software are typically capitalized. Research, preliminary project, operations, maintenance and training costs are
charged to operating expense when the work is performed.

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment when evenes or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If impairment indicators are present and the estimated furure undiscounted
cash flows are less than the carrying value of the long-lived assets, the carrying value is reduced to the estimated fair value
as measured by the discounted cash flows.

ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES

Liabilities for environmental cleanup costs are initially recorded when BNSF’s liability for environmental cleanup is both
probable and a reasonable estimate of associated costs can be made. Adjustments to initial estimates are recorded as
necessary based upon additional information developed in subsequent periods. Estimates for these liabilities are
undiscounted.

PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS

Personal injury liability and ultimate expense projections are estimated using standard actuarial methodologies. These
actuarial method procedures include unasserted claims, except for certain occupational illnesses, which, due to cheir
unpredictability, are accrued on an as reported basis. BNSF’s liabilities for personal injury claims are undiscounted.

INCOME TAXES
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates that apply to taxable income in the period in which the

deferred tax asset or liability is expected to be realized or paid. Valuation allowances are established to reduce deferred tax
assets if it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred rax asset will not be realized.
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STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

At December 31, 2003, the Company had stock-based employee compensation plans. The Company applies Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations in accounting
for its stock based plans. In accordance with APB Opinion 25, the Company records the intrinsic value of stock based
compensation as expense. Accordingly, no compensation expense has been recognized for its fixed stock option plans as
the exercise price equals the stock price on the date of grant. Stock-based compensation expense related to restricted
stock has been recognized as compensation expense. The table below illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per
share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation (in millions, except per share data):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001

Net income, as reported $816 $760 $731

Stock-based employee compensation expense included
in reported net income, net of related tax effects 11 10 8

Total stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value method for all awards, net of related tax effects (36) (32) (23)

Pro forma net income $791 $738 $716

Earnings per share:

Basic — as reported $2.21 i $2.01 $1.89
Basic - pro forma $2.14 $1.95 $1.85
Diluted — as reported $2.19 $2.00 $1.87
Diluted - pro forma $2.13 $1.94 $1.83

The pro forma amounts were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 ‘ 2002 2001

Weighted average expected life (years) 4.0 ‘ 4.0 4.0
Weighted average expected volatility 35.0% | 35.0% 35.0%
Weighted average dividend per share $0.49 i $0.48 $0.48
Weighted average risk free interest rate 2.17% 3.89% 4.21%
Weighted average fair value of options granted per share $7.20 L $7.84 $8.44

PENSION AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Annual pension and other post-employment benefits (OPEB) expenses are calculated by third party actuaries using
standard actuarial methodologies. The actuaries assist the Company in making estimates based on historical information,
current information and estimates about future events and circumstances. Significant assumptions used in the valuation
of pension and OPEB include expected return on plan assets, discount rate, rate of increase in compensation levels and
the healch care cost trend rate.

RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain comparative prior year amounts in the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes have been

reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on previously reported
operating income and net income.
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3. HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company uses derivatives to hedge against increases in diesel fuel prices and interest rates as well as to convert a
portion of its fixed-rate long-term debe to floating-rate debt. The Company formally documents the relationship
between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for the use
of the hedging instrument. This documentation includes linking the derivatives that are designated as fair value or cash
flow hedges to specific assets or liabilities on the balance sheet, commitments or forecasted transactions. The Company
assesses at the time a derivative contract is entered into, and at least quarterly, whether the derivative item is effective in
offsetting the changes in fair value or cash flows. Any change in fair value resulting from ineffectiveness, as defined by
SEAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended, is recognized in current period
earnings. For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain
or loss on the derivative instrument is recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI) as a separate
component of stockholders” equity and reclassified into earnings in the period during which the hedge transaction affects
earnings.

BNSF monitors its hedging positions and credit ratings of its counterparties and does not anticipate losses due to
counterparty nonperformance.

FUEL

Fuel costs represented 14, 11 and 13 percent of total operating expenses during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Due
to the significance of diesel fuel expenses to the operations of BNSF and the historical volatility of fuel prices, the
Company maintains a program to hedge against fluctuations in the price of its diesel fuel purchases. The fuel-hedging
program includes the use of derivatives that are accounted for as cash flow hedges. The intent of the program is to
protect the Company’s operating margins and overall profitability from adverse fuel price changes by entering into fuel-
hedge instruments based on management’s evaluation of current and expected diesel fuel price trends. However, to the
extent the Company hedges portions of its fuel purchases, it may not realize the impact of decreases in fuel prices.
Conversely, to the extent the Company does not hedge portions of its fuel purchases, it may be adversely affected by
increases in fuel prices. Based on fuel consumption during 2003 and excluding the impact of the hedging program, each
one-cent increase in the price of fuel would result in approximately $12 million of additional fuel expense on an annual
basis.

TOTAL FUEL HEDGING PROGRAM

As of December 31, 2003, BNSF’s total fuel hedging program covered approximately 67 percent, 46 percent and 14
percent of estimated fuel purchases for 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Hedge positions are closely monitored to
ensure that they will not exceed actual fuel requirements in any period.

The amounts recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income for fuel hedge transactions were as follows (in
millions):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Hedge benefit
Ineffective portion of unexpired hedges
Tax effect

Hedge benefit, net of tax
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The amounts recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for fuel hedge transactions were as follows (in millions):

DECEMBER 31, 2003 | 2002
Fuel hedging asset $145 $31
Ineffective portion of unexpired hedges 3 -
Tax effect 55 12
Amount included in AOCI, net of tax $87 $19
Settled fuel hedging contracts receivable $21 $29

Amounts recorded in AOCI represent the fair value less the ineffective portion of unexpired hedges.

BNSF measures the fair value of hedges from data provided by various external counterparties. To value a swap, the
Company uses the forward commodity price for the period hedged. The fair values of costless collars are calculated and
provided by the corresponding counterparties.

NYMEX #2 HEATING OIL HEDGES

As of December 31, 2003, BNSF had entered into fuel swap and costless collar agreements utilizing NYMEX #2 heating
oil (HO). The hedge prices do not include taxes, transportation costs, certain other fuel handling costs and any
differences which may occur between the prices of HO and the purchase price of BNSF’s diesel fuel. The sum of all such
costs typically ranges between 7 and 17 cents per gallon.

During 2003, the Company entered into fuel swap agreements utilizing HO to hedge the equivalent of 233 million
gallons of fuel at an average price of approximately $0.74 per gallon, and costless collar agreements urilizing HO to
hedge the equivalent of approximately 284 million gallons of fuel with an average cap price of $0.87 per gallon and an
average floor price of $0.76 per gallon. In addition, the Company converted approximately 44 million gallons of West
Texas Intermediate crude oil (WTID) collars into HO collars. These HO collars had an average cap price of $0.74 per
gallon and an average floor price of $0.67 per gallon. The Company also converted approximately 413 million gallons of
WTT collats and 50 million gallons of HO collars into HO swaps. These HO swaps had an average price of $0.70 per
gallon. The Company also terminated 25 million gallons of HO collars for 2 gain of less than $1 million. As of
December 31, 2003, there are no HO collars outstanding. The following table provides fuel hedge data based upon the
quarter being hedged for all HO fuel hedges outstanding ac December 31, 2003.

QUARTER ENDING
2004 MARCH 37, JUNE 30, SEPTEMBER 30,  DECEMBER 31, ANNUAL
HO SWAPS
Gallons hedged (in millions) 226.80 179.55 151.20 138.60 696.15
Average swap price (per gallon) ' " $0.75 $0.69 $0.69 $0.70 | $0.71
Fair value (in millions) $33 $19 $14 $13 ! $79

WEST TEXAS INTERMEDIATE CRUDE OIL HEDGES

In addition, BNSF had entered into fuel swap and costless collar agreements utilizing WTI. The hedge prices do not
include taxes, transportation costs, certain other fuel handling costs, and any differences which may occur between the
prices of WTT and the purchase price of BNSF’s diesel fuel, including refining costs. The sum of all such costs typically
ranges between 12 and 30 cents per gallon.

During 2003, the Company entered into fuel swap agreements utilizing WTT to hedge the equivalent of approximately
265 million gallons of fuel at an average price of approximately $24.63 per barrel. Also, during 2003, the Company
entered into costless collar agreements utilizing WTT to hedge the equivalent of approximately 684 million gallons of fuel
with an average cap price of $27.10 per barrel and an average floor price of $22.49 per barrel. The following tables
provide fuel hedge data based upon the quarter being hedged for all WTT fuel hedges outstanding at December 31,
2003.
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QUARTER ENDING
2004 MARCH 31, JUNE30,  SEPTEMBER 30,  DECEMBER 31, ANNUAL
WTI SWAPS
Barrels hedged (in thousands) 525 525 525 675 2,250
Equivalent gallons hedged (in millions) 22.05 22.05 22.05 28.35 94.50
Average swap price (per barrel) $20.68 $20.64 $20.61 $21.34 $20.85
Fair value (in millions) $6 $5 $5 $5 $21
WTI COLLARS
Barrels hedged (in thousands) - 300 300 375 975
Equivalent gallons hedged (in millions) - 12.60 12.60 15.75 40.95
Average cap price (per barrel) $- $29.40 $28.60 $27.76 $28.52
Average floor price (per barrel) $- $25.00 $24.20 $23.30 $24.10
Fair value {in millions) $- $1 $- $1 $2
\ QUARTER ENDING
2005 | MARCH3I, JUNE30,  SEPTEMBER 30,  DECEMBER 31, ANNUAL
WTI SWAPS ‘;
Barrels hedged (in thousands) 600 675 1,125 1,350 3,750
Equivalent gallons hedged (in millions) 25.20 28.35 47.25 56.70 157.50
Average swap price {per barrel) $24.26 $24.67 $24.55 $24.54 $24.52
Fair value (in millions) $2 $2 $3 $3 | $10
WTI COLLARS
Barrels hedged (in thousands) 3,600 3,000 2,025 1,275 9,900
Equivalent gallons hedged (in millions) 151.20 126.00 85.05 53.55 415.80
Average cap price (per barrel) $26.45 $25.98 $25.79 $25.61 $26.06
Average floor price (per barrel) $21.82 $21.39 $21.19 $21.05 $21.46
Fair value (in millions) $10 $8 $5 $4 $27
QUARTER ENDING
2006 MARCH 31, JUNE30,  SEPTEMBER 30,  DECEMBER 31, ANNUAL
WTI SWAPS
Barrels hedged (in thousands) 1,350 675 375 - 2,400
Equivalent gallons hedged (in millions) i 56.70 28.35 15.75 - 100.80
Average swap price (per barrel) } $24.43 $25.16 $25.69 $- $24.83
Fair value (in millions) | $3 $1 $- $- $4
WTi COLLARS
Barrels hedged (in thousands) 825 750 300 - 1,875
Equivalent gallons hedged (in millions) 34.65 31.50 12.60 - 78.75
Average cap price (per barrel) $27.45 $27.66 $28.44 $- $27.69
Average floor price (per barrel) $22.85 $23.05 $23.70 $- $23.06
Fair value (in millions) $1 $1 $- $- $2
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NYMEX #2 HEATING OIL REFINING SPREAD HEDGES

In addition, during 2003 the Company entered into fuel swap agreements utilizing the HO refining spread (HO-WTT)
to hedge the equivalent of approximately 95 million gallons of fuel with an average swap price of $4.16 per barrel. HO-
WTTI is the difference in price between HO and WTT; therefore a HO-WTT swap in combination with a WTT swap is
equivalent to a HO swap. The following tables provide fuel hedge data based upon the quarter being hedged for all HO-
WTT fuel hedges outstanding at December 31, 2003.

QUARTER ENDING
2004 MARCH 31, JUNE 30,  SEPTEMBER 30,  DECEMBER 31, ANNUAL
HO-WTI SWAPS
Barrels hedged (in thousands) 525 525 525 675 | 2,250
Equivalent gallons hedged (in millions) 22.05 22.05 22.05 28.35 94,50
Average swap price (per barrel) $4.55 $3.17 $3.81 $4.90 $4.16
Fair value (in millions) $- $- $- $- $-

SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE PRIOR YEAR INFORMATION

The following table provides summarized comparative information for hedge transactions as of December 31, 2002.

DECEMBER 31, 2002

YEAR ENDING 2003 2004 2005
WTI SWAPS

Barrels hedged (in thousands) 2,400 2,100 -
Equivalent gallons hedged (in millions) 100.80 88.20 -
Weighted average swap price $20.55 $20.63 $-
Fair value (in millions) $11 $6 $-
WTI COLLARS

Barrels hedged (in thousands) 11,100 3,600 3,000
Equivalent gallons hedged (in millions) 466.20 151.20 126.00
Weighted average cap price $27.70 $24.96 $24.88
Weighted average floor price $23.35 $20.48 $20.38
Fair value (in millions) $13 $1 $-

INTEREST RATE

From time to time, the Company enters into various interest rate hedging transactions for the purpose of managing
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and establishing rates in anticipation of future debt issuances as well as to
convert a portion of its fixed-rate long-term debt to floating-rate debt. The Company uses interest rate swaps and
treasury locks as part of its interest rate risk management strategy.
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TOTAL INTEREST RATE HEDGING PROGRAM

All swap and treasury lock transactions outstanding with an interest rate component are reflected in the tables below.

DECEMBER 31, 2003

MATURITY DATE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 THEREAFTER TOTAL FAIR VALUE
FAIR VALUE HEDGES
Fixed to variable swaps
(in millions) $100 $300 - $300 - $200 $900 $65
Average fixed rate 8.63% 6.38% - 7.88% - 6.13% 7.07%
Average floating rate 5.44% 2.63% - 3.75% - 1.65% 3.10%

BNSF’s measurement of the fair value of interest rate swaps and treasury locks is based on estimates of the mid-market
values for the transactions provided by the counterparties to these agreements.

SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE PRIOR YEAR INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2002
MATURITY DATE
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 THEREAFTER TOTAL FAIR VALUE

FAIR VALUE HEDGES
Fixed to variable swaps

(in millions) -- $100 $300 - $300 $200 $900 $82
Average fixed rate -- 8.63% 6.38% - 7.88% 6.13% 7.07%
A\"erage floating rate - 5.98% 2.87% - 4.38% 1.89% 3.50%
CASH FLOW HEDGES
Variable to fixed LIBOR

swaps (in millions) $100 -- -- -- -- - $100 $ —
Average fixed rate 3.14% - - - -- - 3.14%
Average floating rate 1.43% - - -- - - 1.43%
Treasury locks (in

millions) $150 - - - - - $150 $(3)
Average locked-in rate 4.38% - -- - - -- 4.38%

FAIR VALUE INTEREST RATE HEDGES

The Company enters into interest rate swaps to convert fixed-rate debt to floating-rate debt. These swaps are accounted
for as fair value hedges under SFAS No. 133. These fair value hedges qualify for the short cut method of recognition;
therefore, no portion of these swaps is treated as ineffective. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, BNSF had entered into
nine separate swaps on a notional amount of $900 million in which it pays an average floating rate, which fluctuates
quarterly, based on LIBOR. The average floating rate to be paid by BNSF as of December 31, 2003, was 3.10 percent
and the average fixed rate BNSF is to receive is 7.07 percent. These swaps will expire between 2004 and 2009. '
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The amounts recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income for interest rate fair value hedge transactions were as
follows (in millions):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001
Hedge benefic $35 $26 $-
Tax effect 13 10 -
Hedge benefit, net of tax $22 i $16 $-

The amounts recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets for interest rate fair value hedge transactions, which represent
the fair value of unexpired hedges, were as follows (in millions):

DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002
Short-term interest rate hedging asset $9 $5
Long-term interest rate hedging asset $56 877

CASH FLOW INTEREST RATE HEDGES

The Company occasionally uses interest rate swaps to fix the LIBOR component of commercial paper. These swaps are
accounted for as cash flow hedges under SFAS No. 133 and qualify for the short cut method of recognition and,
therefore, no portion of these swaps is treated as ineffective. As of December 31, 2003, BNSF had no interest rate swaps
outstanding to fix the LIBOR component of commercial paper but had $100 million outstanding at December 31,
2002. These swaps expired in 2003.

In anticipation of future debt issuances, BNSF entered into three treasury lock transactions in 2002 totaling $150
million to fix the treasury component on a future 10-year debt issuance. The average locked-in rate was 4.38 percent.
These treasury locks were closed in May 2003 in connection with the issuance of $250 million of 4.30 percent notes due
July 1, 2013. BNSF paid the counterparties $10 million on the closing date and this payment will be amortized over the
life of the related notes.

The amounts recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Income for interest rate cash flow hedge transactions were as
follows (in millions):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001
Hedge loss $- $(2) $-
Tax effect - 1) -
Hedge loss, net of tax $- $(1) $-

The amounts recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets for interest rate cash flow hedge transactions, which represent
the fair value of unexpired cash flow hedges, were as follows (in millions):

DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002
Interest rate hedging liability $- $(3)
Tax effect - 1)
Interest rate hedging liability included in AOCI, net of tax $- $(2)
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4. OTHER EXPENSE, NET

Other expense, net includes the following {in millions):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001
Accounts receivable sale fees $9 $12 $30
Write-down of non-rail investments - - 75
Miscellaneous, net 5 - 9

Total $14 $12 $114

Losses recognized in 2001 related to non-rail investments consisted primarily of FreighcWise, Inc., an Internet
transportation exchange; Pathnet Telecommunications, Inc., a telecommunications venture; a decline in the cash
surrender value of company owned life insurance policies; and a portfolio of other non-core investments.

5. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (benefit) was as follows (in millions):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 | 2002 2001
Current:
Federal $(12) | $21 $129
State ’ 6 | 3 11
Total current (6) ‘ 24 140
Deferred:
Federal 408 378 258
State 52 54 44
Toral deferred 460 | 432 302
Total $454 | 8456 $442
Reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate to the effective tax rate was as follows:
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 | 2002 2001
l
Federal statutory income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 3.0 3.1 3.0
Tax settlement (1.0) - .
Other, net 0.1) (0.6) (0.3)
Effective tax rate 36.9% | 37.5% 37.7%




The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows (in millions):

DECEMBER 31, 2008 | 2002
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization $(7,596) | $(7,148)
Other (537) (445)
Total deferred tax liabilities (8,133) (7,593)
Deferred tax assets:
Casualty and environmental 273 265
Employee merger and separation costs 69 80
Pension and post-retirement benefits 238 237
Other 364 350
Total deferred tax assets 944 932
Net deferred tax liability $(7,189) $(6,661)
Non-current deferred income tax liability $(7,481) | $(6,975)
Current deferred income tax asset 292 s 314
Net deferred tax liability $(7,189) | $(6,661)

All federal income tax returns of BNSF’s predecessor companies, Burlington Northern Inc. and Santa Fe Pacific
Corporation are closed through 1994 and the business combination date of September 1995, respectively. BNSF is
currently under Internal Revenue Service examination for years 1995 through 1999. In addition, BNSF and its
subsidiaries have various state income tax returns in the process of examination, administrative appeal or litigation. The
Company believes that adequate provision has been made for any adjustment that might be assessed for open years

through 2003.

6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

BNSF Railway transfers most of its accounts receivable to Santa Fe Receivables Corporation (SFRC), a special purpose
subsidiary. SFRC transfers an undivided interest in such receivables, with limited exceptions, to a master trust, and
causes the trust to issue an undivided interest in the receivables to investors (the A/R sales pmgram). The undivided
interests in the master trust may be in the form of certificates or purchased interests.

SFRC renewed $350 million of its $700 million accounts receivable facility, effective June 2003, for an additional 364
days. In addition, SFRC entered into a separate $350 million accounts receivable facility with a five year term in June
2003. The Company’s total capacity to sell undivided interests to investors under the A/R sales program was $700
million at December 31, 2003. QOutstanding undivided interests held by investors under the A/R sales program were
$625 million at December 31, 2003, and $594 million, net of $8 million of excess cash held in the trust, at December
31, 2002. These receivables were derecognized by BNSF Railway in connection with the sale of undivided interests
under the A/R sales program. The undivided interests were supported by $808 million and $771 million of receivables
transferred by SFRC to the master trust at December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively. When SFRC
wransfers these receivables to the master trust, it retains an undivided interest in the receivables sold. This retained interest
is included in accounts receivable in the Company’s financial statements. SFRC's retained interest in these receivables of
$183 million and $177 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, less an allowance for uncollectible
accounts, reflected the toral accounts receivables transferred by SFRC to the master trust less $625 million and $594
million, at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, of outstanding undivided interests held by investors. Due to a
relatively short collection cycle, the fair value of the undivided interest transferred to investors in the A/R sales program
approximated book value and there was no gain or loss from the transaction.
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The Company retains the collection responsibility with respect to the accounts receivable. Proceeds from collections
reinvested in the A/R sales program were approximately $9.8 billion in 2003 and $9.5 billion in 2002. No servicing asset
or liability has been recorded since the fees the Company receives for servicing the receivables approximate the related
costs. SFRC’s costs of the sale of receivables are included in other expense, net and were $9 million and $12 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These costs fluctuate monthly with changes in prevailing
interest rates, and were based on weighted average interest rates of 1.1 percent and 2.0 percent for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These costs include interest, discounts associated with transferring the
receivables under the A/R sales program to SFRC, program fees paid to banks, incidental commercial paper issuing costs,
and fees for unused commitment availability.

The amount of accounts receivable transferred by BNSF Railway to SFRC fluctuates based upon the availability of
receivables and is directly affected by changing business volumes and credit risks, including dilution and delinquencies.
BNSF Railway has historically experienced very low levels of default or dilution. If dilution or delinquency percentages
were to increase by one percentage point, the value of BNSF Railway’s retained interest would increase by approximately
$8 million.

Receivables funded under the A/R sales program may not include amounts over 90 days past due or concentrations over
certain limits with any one customer. At December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, $78 million and $77 million,
respectively, of accounts receivable were greater than 90 days old. The Company maintains an allowance for bill
adjustments and uncollectible accounts based upon the expected collectibility of accounts receivable, including
receivables transferred to the master trust. Credit losses are based on specific identification of uncollectible accounts and
application of historical collection percentages by aging category. At December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, $85
million and $82 million, respectively, of such allowances had been recorded. During the year ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, $7 million, $7 million and $8 million, respectively, of accounts receivable were written off.

The investors in the master trust have no recourse to BNSF Railway's other assets except for customary warranty and
indemnity claims. Creditors of BNSF Railway have no recourse to the assets of the master trust or SFRC unless and until
all claims of their respective creditors have been paid. The A/R sales program includes provisions that, if triggered, allow
the investors participating in this program, at their option, to cancel the program. At December 31, 2003, BNSF
Railway was in compliance with these provisions.

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment, net (in millions), and the weighted average annual depreciation rate (%) were as follows:

2003
DEPRECIATION
DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 RATE
Land $ 1,519 $ 1,495 - %
Track structure 13,818 13,024 3.6
Other roadway 10,199 9,733 2.5
Locomotives 3,468 2,721 3.7
Freight cars and other equipment 1,757 1,678 4.6
Computer hardware and software 313 254 11.1
Total cost 31,074 28,905
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (6,006) (4,883)
Property and equipment, net $25,068 $24,022

The Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002, included $940 million, net of $281 million of
amortization, and $972 million, net of $249 million of amortization, respectively, for property and equipment under
capital leases, primarily for locomotives.
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8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other current liabilities consisted of the following (in millions):

DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002
Compensation and benefits payable $ 418 $ 410
Casualty and environmental liabilities 250 248
Accounts payable 214 177
Tax liabilities 174 175
Contracrt allowances 129 124
Rents and leases 121 150
Equipment purchases 114 -
Accrued interest 111 118
Employee merger and separation costs 35 40
Other 536 476
Total $2,102 $1,918
9. DEBT
Debt outstanding was as follows (in millions):
DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002
Notes and debentures, weighted average rate of 6.2 percent, due 2004 to 2097 $4,790 $4,719
Equipment obligations, weighted average rate of 7.1 percent, due 2004 to 2016 537 611
Capitalized lease obligations, weighted average rate of 6.4 percent, due 2004 to 2023 612 646
Mortgage bonds, weighted average rate of 8.3 percent, due 2004 to 2047 391 422
Financing obligations, weighted average rate of 6.3 percent, due 2012 to 2028 153 138
Commercial paper, 1.2 percent, variable 242 320
Unamortized discount and other, net (41) (42)
Total 6,684 6,814
Less current portion of long-term debt (244) (173)
Long-term debt $6,440 $6,641

Notes and debentures include increases related to fair value adjustments for hedges of $59 million and $77 million at

December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Certain BNSF Railway properties and other assets are subject to liens securing $391 million of mortgage debt. Certain
locomotives and rolling stock of BNSF Railway are subject to equipment obligations and capital leases.

The following tables provide fair value information for the Company’s debt obligations including principal cash flows
and related weighted average interest rates by contractual maturity dates. Weighted average variable rates are based on

implied forward rates in the yield curve at December 31, 2003.
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The fair values presented in the following table do not include the fair value of the swaps and treasury locks.

DECEMBER 31, 2003
MATURITY DATE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 THEREAFTER TOTAL FAR VALUE

Fixed-rate debt

(in millions) $142 $146 $432 $135 $135 $4,493 $5,483 $5,839
Average interest rate 7.1% 7.1% 8.4% 6.9% 6.9% 6.8% 7.0%
Variable-rate debt

(in millions) $102 $316 - $322 $242 $219 $1,201 $1,276
Average interest rate 5.6% 3.6% - 5.5% 3.5% 4.3% 4.4%

Maturities in 2008 in the 2003 table above exclude $200 million of 7.29 percent debentures which mature in 2036 but
are redeemable in 2008 at the option of the debt holders. In addition, BNSF has included in 2008 maturities $242
million of commercial paper in the 2003 table above. A one-half percent change in interest rates would cause interest
expensc related to commercial paper to fluctuate by approximately $1 million.

DECEMBER 31, 2002
MATURITY DATE I
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 THEREAFTER | TOTAL FAIR VALUE

Fixed-rate debt

(in millions) | $173 $149 $146 $433 $136 $4,480 | $5,517 $6,028
Average interest rate | 6.4% 7.0% 7.1% 8.4% 6.9% 7.0% 7.1%
Variable-rate debt ‘

{(in millions) - $104 $641 - $328 $224 $1,297 $1,343
Average interest rate - 6.1% 3.1% - 5.5% 4.1% 4.1%

BNSF has included in 2005 maturities $320 million of commercial paper in the 2002 table above. In addition,
maturities in 2003 included in the 2002 table exclude $175 million of 6.53 percent notes due 2037 which were
redeemable in 2003 at the option of the holder.

+ The fair value of BNSF's long-term debt is primarily based on quoted market prices for the same or similar issues, or on

the current rates that would be offered to BNSF for debt of the same remaining maturities. The carrying amount of
commercial paper and bank debt approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

MORTGAGE BONDS

2003

The Company exercised an option to call $29 million of 2.63 percent mortgage bonds issued by a predecessor company
and due January 1, 2010. Cash generated from operations was used to fund the call.

NOTES AND DEBENTURES
2003

BNSF issued $250 million of 4.30 percent notes due July 1, 2013. The net proceeds of the debt issuance were used for
general corporate purposes including the repayment of outstanding commercial paper.

The Company exercised an option to call $150 million of 7.50 percent bonds due July 2023 at a price of 103.02 percent
of par. Commercial paper was used to fund the call.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had $750 million of debt capacity available under its shelf registration.
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2002

BNSEF issued $300 million of 5.90 percent notes due July 1, 2012. The net proceeds of the debt issuance were used for

general corporate purposes including the repayment of outstanding commercial paper.

COMMERCIAL PAPER

BNSF issues commercial paper from time to time that is supported by bank revolving credit agreements. At December
31, 2003, there were no bank borrowings against the revolving credit agreements. Outstanding commercial paper
balances are considered as reducing the amount of borrowings available under these agreements. In June 2003, the
Company reduced its $750 million short-term facility to $700 million and extended its expiration date to June 2004.
The Company has the ability to have any amounts then outstanding mature as late as June 2005. Also, in June 2003, the
Company reduced its $750 million long-term facility to $500 million and extended its expiration date to June 2008. As
of December 31, 2003, as a result of these amendments, the bank revolving credit agreements allow borrowings of up to
$1.2 billion. Annual facility fees are currently 0.10 percent and 0.15 percent for the short-term and long-term facilities,
respectively. Both rates are subject to change based upon changes in BNSF’s senior unsecured debt ratings. Borrowing
rates are based upon: i) LIBOR plus a spread determined by BNSF’s senior unsecured debrt ratings, i) money market
rates offered at the option of the lenders, or i) an alternate base rate. The Company classifies commercial paper as long-
term to the extent of its borrowing capacity under these facilities. BNSF must maintain compliance with certain financial
covenants under its revolving credit agreements. At December 31, 2003, the Company was in compliance.

The maturity value of commercial paper outstanding as of December 31, 2003 was $494 million, reducing the total
capacity available under the revolving credit agreements to approximately $706 million. Included in the $494 million
maturity value of commercial paper is $251 million issued to a consolidated subsidiary of BNSF that is eliminated upon
consolidation.

FINANCING OBLIGATIONS
2002

The Company financed the construction of an intermodal facility by a third party and entered into an agreement to lease
the intermodal facility for 20 years. This lease transaction is accounted for as a financing and has a purchase option. The
Company recorded an asset in property and equipment, net and a liability in long-term debt and commercial paper of
$138 million which represents the fair market value at lease inception.

GUARANTEES

Debt guaranteed by the Company as of December 31, 2003 is as follows (dollar amounts in millions):

GUARANTEES
BNSF PRINCIPAL MAXIMUM MAXIMUM
OWNERSHIP AMOUNT FUTURE RECOURSE REMAINING TERM
PERCENTAGE GUARANTEED PAYMENTS AMOUNT (a) {IN YEARS)
COUNTERPARTY
Termination of
Kinder Morgan Energy Partners, L.P. 0.5% $190 $190 $- Ownership
Kansas City Terminal Intermodal
Transportation Corporation 0.0% $68 $111 $111 15
The Unified Government of Wyandotte
County/Kansas City, Kansas 0.0% $14 $23 $- 19
Westside Intermodal Transportation
Corporation 0.0% $45 $76 $- 19
San Jacinto Partnership 49.0% $50 $51 $- Less than 1
All other 0.0% $11 $15 $6 Various

(a)  Reflects the maximum amount the Company could recover from a third party other than the counterparty.
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KINDER MORGAN ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.

Santa Fe Pacific Pipelines, Inc (SFPP), an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of BNSF, has a guarantee in connection
with its remaining special limited partnership interest in SFPP, L.P. All obligadions with respect to the guarantee will
cease upon termination of ownership rights which would occur upon a purt notice issued by BNSF or the exercise of the

call rights by the general partners of SFPP, L.D.

KANSAS CITY TERMINAL INTERMODAL TRANSPORTATION CORPORATION

BNSF Railway and another major railroad jointly and severally guarantee $68 million of debt of Kansas City Terminal
Intermodal Transportation Corporation, the proceeds of which were used to finance construction of a double track grade
separation bridge in Kansas City, Missouri, which is operated and used by Kansas City Terminal Railway Company
(KCTRC). BNSF has a 25 percent ownership in KCTRC and accounts for its interest using the equity method of

accounting.

THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE COUNTY/KANSAS CITY, KANSAS AND WESTSIDE INTERMODAL
TRANSPORTATION CORPORATION

Proceeds of guaranteed debt are being used to finance construction of a bridge that will connect BNSF Railway’s
Argentine Yard in Kansas City, Kansas, with the KCTRC mainline tracks in Kansas City, Missouri. The bridge will be
operated by KCTRC.

SAN JACINTO PARTNERSHIP

BNSF agreed to guarantee approximately $85 million of debrt, of which $50 million was outstanding as of December 31,
2003. The proceeds from the debt are being used to construct and operate a 13-mile railroad, which will service several
chemical and plastics manufacturing facilities in the Houston, Texas area. In addition, the San Jacinto Partnership used
$22 million of the proceeds to repay all of the interim construction advances previously made by BNSF. As discussed in
Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the San Jacinto Partnership will likely be consolidated on March 31,
2004.

AlL OTHER

BNSF Railway guarantees $11 million of other debt and leases. BNSF holds a performance bond and has the option to
sub-lease property to recover up to $6 million of the $11 million of guarantees. These guarantees expire between 20035
and 2014.

Other than the performance bond discussed above, there is no collateral held by a third party which BNSF could obtain

and liquidate to recover any amounts paid under the above guarantees.

Other than amounts recorded for capitalized obligations, none of the guarantees above are recorded in the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company. BNSF does not expect performance under these guarantees to have a material
effect on the Company in the foreseeable future.

INDEMNITIES

In the ordinary course of business, BNSF enters into agreements with third parties that include indemnification clauses.
In general, these clauses are customary for the types of agreements in which they are included. At times, these clauses
may involve indemnification for the acts of the Company, its employees and/or agents, indemnification for another
party's acts, indemnification for future events, indemnification based upon a certain standard of performance,
indemnification for liabilities arising out of the Company's use of leased equipment or other property, or other types of
indemnification. Due to the uncertainty of whether the events which would trigger the indemnification obligations will
ever occur and, if they did, the extent of the liability which would thereby result, the exposure for future indemnification
payments cannot be estimated with any amount of certainty. However, the Company does not believe, based on
information available, that these indemnity agreements will have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of
operation, financial position eor liquidity.
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10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LEASE COMMITMENTS

BNSF has substantial lease commitments for locomotives, freight cars, trailers and containers, office buildings and other
property, and many of these leases provide the option to purchase the leased item at fair market value at the end of the
lease. However, some provide fixed price purchase options. Future minimum lease payments (which reflect leases having
non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year) as of December 31, 2003, are summarized as follows (in millions):

CAPITAL OPERATING
DECEMBER 31, LEASES LEASES
2004 $110 $437
2005 109 442
2006 108 409
2007 96 366
2008 90 366
Thereafter 234 3,326
Total 747 $5,346
Less amount representing interest 135
Present value of minimum lease payments $612

Lease rental expense for all operating leases was $462 million, $448 million and $443 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Contingent rentals and sublease rentals were not significant.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into long-term contractual requirements for future goods and
services needed for the operations of the business. Such commitments are not in excess of expected requirements and are
not reasonably likely to result in performance penalties or payments that would have a material adverse effect on the

Company’s liquidity.

CASUALTY AND ENVIRONMENTAL

Personal injury claims, including work-related injuries to employees, are 2 significant expense for the railroad industry.
Employees of BNSF are compensated for work-related injuries according to the provisions of the Federal Employers’
Liability Act (FELA). FELA’s system of requiring the finding of fault, coupled with unscheduled awards and reliance on
the jury system, contributed to significant increases in expense in past years. BNSF has implemented a number of safety
programs to reduce the number of personal injuries as well as the associated claims and personal injury expense.

The Company formed a consolidated wholly-owned subsidiary, Burlington Northern Santa Fe Insurance Company, Led.
(BNSF IC), in the second quarter of 2002. BNSF IC provides insurance coverage for certain punitive damage risks
incurred after April 1, 1998, FELA claims, railroad protective and force account insurance claims incurred after January
1, 2002, and certain other claims which are subject to reinsurance. At December 31, 2003, BNSF IC had invested in
commercial paper issued by BNSF and third party time deposits and money market accounts. The Company’s
accounting policies related to personal injury, as disclosed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, did not
change as a result of the formation of this subsidiary.

The Company recognized personal injury expenses of approximately $215 million, $228 million and $195 million in
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. BNSF made payments for personal injuries of approximately $198 million, $190
million and $173 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had
recorded liabilities of $513 million and $496 million, respectively, related to personal injury claims. Of these amounts,
$200 million and $197 million were included in current liabilities in 2003 and 2002, respectively. BNSF’s liabilities for
personal injury claims are undiscounted.
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The Company’s operations, as well as those of its competitors, are subject to extensive federal, state and local
environmental regulation. BNSF’s operating procedures include practices to protect the environment from the risks
inherent in railroad operations, which frequently involve transporting chemicals and other hazardous macerials.
Additionally, many of BNSF’s land holdings are and have been used for industrial or transportation-related purposes or
leased to commercial or industrial companies whose activities may have resulted in discharges onto the property. As a
result, BNSF is subject to environmental cleanup and enforcement actions. In particular, the Federal Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA), also known as the Superfund law, as
well as similar state laws generally impose joint and several liability for cleanup and enforcement costs on current and
former owners and operators of a site without regard to fault or the legality of the original conduct. BNSF has been
notified that it is a potentially responsible party (PRP) for study and cleanup costs at approximately 20 Superfund sites
for which investigation and remediation payments are or will be made or are yet to be determined (the Superfund sites)
and, in many instances, is one of several PRPs. In addition, BNSF may be considered a PRP under certain other laws.
Accordingly, under CERCLA and other federal and state statutes, BNSF may be held jointly and severally liable for all
environmental costs associated with a particular site. If there are other PRPs, BNSF generally participates in the cleanup
of these sites through cost-sharing agreements with terms that vary from site to site. Costs are typically allocated based on
relative volumetric contribution of material, the amount of time the site was owned or operated, and/or the portion of
the total site owned or operated by each PRP.

Environmental costs include initial site surveys and environmental studies of potentially contaminated sites as well as
costs for remediation and restoration of sites determined to be contaminated. Liabilities for environmental cleanup costs
are initially recorded when BNSF’s liability for environmental cleanup is both probable and a reasonable estimate of
associated costs can be made. Adjustments to initial estimates are recorded as necessary based upon additional
information developed in subsequent periods. BNSF conducts an ongoing environmental contingency analysis, which
considers a combination of factors including independent consulting reports, site visits, legal reviews, analysis of the
likelihood of participation in and the ability of other PRPs to pay for cleanup, and historical trend analyses.

BNSF is involved in a number of administrative and judicial proceedings and other mandatory cleanup efforts at
approximately 430 sites, including the Superfund sites, at which it is participating in the study or cleanup, or both, of
alleged environmental contamination. The Company recognized environmental expenses of approximately $59 million,
$43 million and $51 million during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. BNSF paid approximately $56 million, $49
million and $72 million during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, for mandatory and unasserted cleanup efforts,
including amounts expended under federal and state voluntary cleanup programs. BNSF has recorded liabilities for
remediation and restoration of all known sites of $199 million at December 31, 2003, compared with $196 million at
December 31, 2002. Of these amounts, $50 million and $51 million, respectively, are included in current liabiliies.
BNSF’s environmental liabilities are not discounted. BNSF anticipates that the majority of the accrued costs at
December 31, 2003, will be paid over the next five years and no individual site is considered to be material.

Liabilities recorded for environmental costs represent BNSF’s best estimates for remediation and restoration of these sites
and include both asserted and unasserted claims. Unasserted claims are not considered to be a material component of the
liability. Although recorded liabilities include BNSF’s best estimates of all costs, without reduction for anticipated
recoveries from third parties, BNSF’s total cleanup costs at these sites cannot be predicted with certainty due to various
factors such as the extent of corrective actions that may be required, evolving environmental laws and regulations,
advances in environmental technology, the extent of other parties’ participation in cleanup efforts, developments in
ongoing environmental analyses related to sites determined to be contaminated, and developments in environmental
surveys and studies of potentially contaminated sites. As a result, future charges to income for environmental liabilities
could have a significant effect on results of operations in a particular quarter or fiscal year as individual site studies and
remediation and restoration efforts proceed or as new sites arise. However, management believes it is unlikely any
identified matters, either individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on BNSF’s results of
operations, financial position ot liquidity.
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OTHER CLAIMS AND LITIGATION

BNSF and its subsidiaries are parties to a number of legal actions and claims, various governmental proceedings and
private civil suits arising in the ordinary course of business, including those related to environmental matters, Federal
Employers’ Liability Act claims by BNSF Railway employees, other personal injury claims, and disputes and complaints
involving certain transportation rates and charges (including complaints seeking refunds of prior charges paid for coal
transportation and the prescription of future rates for such movements). Some of the legal proceedings include claims for
punitive as well as compensatory damages, and a few proceedings purport to be class actions. While the final cutcome of
these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, considering among other things the meritorious legal defenses available
and liabilities that have been recorded along with applicable insurance, it is the opinion of BNSF’s management that
none of these items will have a material adverse effect on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity of
BNSF. However, an unexpected adverse resolution of one or more of these items could have a material adverse effect on
the results of operations in a particular quarter or fiscal year.

11. EMPLOYEE MERGER AND SEPARATION COSTS

Employee merger and separation costs activity was as follows (in millions):

2003 | 2002 2001

Beginning balance at January 1, $210 | $274 $310
Accruals 15 ] 1 30
Payments (43) (55) (55)
Other 3) \ (10) 1y
Ending balance at December 31, $179 L $210 $274

Employee merger and separation liabilicies of $179 million and $210 million are included in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and principally represent: (i) employee-related severance costs for
the consolidation of clerical functions, material handlers in mechanical shops and trainmen on reserve boards; (ii)
deferred benefits payable upon separation or retirement to certain active conductors, trainmen and locomotive engineers;
and (iii) certain non-union employee severance costs. Employee merger and separation expenses are recorded in materials
and other in the Consolidated Income Statements. At December 31, 2003, $35 million of the remaining liabilities are
included in currenct liabilities for anticipared costs to be paid in 2004.

CONDUCTORS, TRAINMEN AND LOCOMOTIVE ENGINEERS

Liabilities related to deferred benefics payable upon separation or retirement to certain active conductors, trainmen and
locomotive engineers were $144 million and $163 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These costs
were primarily incurred in connection with labor agreements reached prior to the consummartion of the business
combinadon of BNSF’s predecessor companies Burlington Northern, Inc. and Santa Fe Pacific Corporation (the
Merger) which, among other things, reduced train crew sizes and allowed for more flexible work rules. In 2003, the
Company updated its estimates and accrued $3 million of additional expenses related to deferred benefits. In 2001, the
Company recorded a $5 million reversal of certain deferred benefits payable to reflect a change in estimates.

CONSOLIDATION OF CLERICAL FUNCTIONS

Liabilities related to the consolidation of clerical functions were $20 million and $25 million at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively, and primarily provide for severance costs associated with the clerical consolidation plan adopted in
1995 upon the Merger and a separation program announced in July 2003. The 1995 consolidation plan resulted in the
elimination of approximately 1,500 permanent positions and was substantially completed during 1999. The July 2003
separation program resulted in accrued severance costs of approximately $12 million and will affect approximately 150
employees. Reductions related to the July 2003 separation program were completed in the fourth quarter of 2003. In the
fourth quarter of 2001, the Company recorded a charge of $9 million of costs related to the reduction of approximately
40 material handlers and other clerical positions. This liability balance also includes remaining costs related to the
reduction of approximately 140 material handlers in 2000.
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In 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recorded $1 million, $10 million and $6 million, respectively, of reversals for
certain liabilities associated with the consolidation of clerical functions. These reversals primarily reflect accrued
payments related to workforce reductions for positions under collective bargaining agreements where the Company was
able to place affected individuals in alternate positions. The remaining liability balance at December 31, 2003, represents
- -benefits to be paid 1o employees affected by the clerical consolidation and the separation program for employees being
paid up to ten years or in some cases through retirement versus receiving a lump-sum payment.

NON-UNION EMPLOYEE SEVERANCE

Liabilities principally related to certain remaining non-union employee severances resulting from the fourth quarter 2001
workforce reduction and the Merger were $15 million and $22 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
These costs will be paid over the next several years based on deferral elections made by the affected employees.

During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company reduced 400 positions through severance, normal attrition and the
elimination of contractors. The Company recorded $21 million of expenses for severance, medical and other benefits
associated with the costs of terminating 360 employees and approximately $31 million for benefits to be received under
the Company’s retirement and medical plans. During the fourth quarter of 2003 and 2002, the Company recorded a $2
million reduction to its liability balance and accrued additional expenses of $1 million, respectively, due to changes in
certain estimates. Substantially all of these planned reductions were completed at December 31, 2001.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per
share is based on basic earnings per share adjusted for the effect of potential common shares outstanding that were
dilutive during the period, arising from employee stock awards and incremental shares calculated using the treasury stock
method.

Weighted average stock options totaling 23.6 million, 26.3 million and 18.6 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share, because the options’ exercise price
exceeded the average market price of the Company’s stock for those periods.

13. RETIREMENT PLANS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

BNSF sponsors a funded, noncontributory qualified BNSF Retirement Plan, which covers substantially all non-union
employees and an unfunded, nonqualified BNSF Supplemental Retirement Plan, which covers certain officers and other
employees. The benefits under these BNSF plans are based on years of credited service and the highest five-year average
compensation levels. BNSF’s funding policy is to contribute annually not less than the regulatory minimum and not
more than the maximum amount deductible for income tax purposes with respect to the funded plan.

Certain salaried employees of BNSF that have met certain age and years of service requirements are eligible for medical
benefits and life insurance coverage during retirement. The retiree medical plan is contributory and provides benefits to
retirees, their covered dependents and beneficiaries. Retiree contributions are adjusted annually. The plan also contains
fixed deductibles, coinsurance and out-of-pocket limitations. The basic life insurance plan is noncontributory and covers
retirees only. Optional life insurance coverage is available for some retirees; however, the retiree is responsible for the full
cost. BNSF’s policy is to fund benefits payable under the medical and life insurance plans as they come due. Employees
beginning salaried employment with BNSF subsequent to September 22, 1995, are not eligible for medical benefits
during retirement.

BNSF’s accumulated post retirement benefit obligation (APBO) and net cost recognized for other post employment
benetits (OPEB) do not reflece the effects of the recent Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization
Act of 2003 (Act). The provisions of the Act provide for a federal subsidy for plans that provide prescription drug
benefits and meet certain qualifications. Specific authoritative guidance on the accounting for the federal subsidy is
pending and when that guidance is issued, it could require BNSF to change information related to its actuarially
determined APBO and net cost for OPEB.
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Components of the net (benefit) cost for these plans were as follows (in millions):

PENSION BENEFITS HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Service cost B V4 $15 $13 | . %4 $6 $4
Interest cost T 100 100 102 | 22 21 18
Expected return on plan assets (123) (127) (136) - - -
Curtailments/settlements - - 10 - - 3
Special termination benefits | - 2 18 - - -
Actuarial loss 3 1 1 8 3 -
Net amortization and deferred amounts - 2 2 2) - -

Net (benefit) cost recognized $(3) $(7) $10 $32 $30 $25

The following table shows the change in benefit obligation based on the September 30 measurement date (in millions):

PENSION BENEFITS HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

CHANGE IN BENEFIT OBLIGATION 2003 2002 2003 2002
Benefit obligation at beginning of period $1,611 $1,507 $363 $314
Service cost 17 15 | 4 6
Interest cost 100 100 I 22 21
Plan participants’ contributions ! - - 6 5
Amendments - 2 9) (12)
Actuarial loss 75 117 7 54
Curtailments/settlements - (13) - -
Special termination benefits - 2 - -
Benefits paid (125) (119) 27) (25)

Benefit obligation at end of period $1,678 $1,611 $366 $363

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $1,559 million and $1,503 million at
September 30, 2003, and 2002, respectively. Both the BNSF Retirement Plan and the BNSF Supplemental Retirement
Plan had an accumulated benefic obligation in excess of plan assets at September 30, 2003 and 2002. ‘

The following table shows the change in plan assets of the plans based on the September 30 measurement date (in
millions):

PENSION BENEFITS | HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS 2003 2002 2003 2002
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period $1,151 $1,345 $- $-
Actual return on plan assets 193 (67) - -
Settlements - (13) - -
Employer contribution 5 5 21 20
Plan participants' contributions - - 6 5
Benefits paid (125) (119) 27) (25)

Fair value of plan assets at end of period $1,224 $1,151 $- $-
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The following table shows the reconciliation of the funded status of the plans with amounts recorded in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets (in millions):

PENSION BENEFITS HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS
DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2003 2002
Fair value of plan assets as of September 30 ' $1,224 $1,151 $- $-
Benefit obligations as of September 30 1,678 1,611 366 363
Funded status (plan assets less benefit obligations) (454) (460) (366) (363)
Amounts not recognized:
Unrecognized net loss 480 479 111 111
Unrecognized prior service cost (2) 3) (20) (12)
Net amount recognized as of December 31 $24 $16 L $(275) $(264)
The following table shows the amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets (in millions):
PENSION BENEFITS HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS
DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2003 2002
Prepaid benefit cost $- $- $- $-
Accrued benefit cost (335) (352) 275) (264)
Intangible assets - - - -
Accumulared other comprehensive income 359 368 - -
Net amount recognized $24 $16 ‘ $(275) $(264)
PENSION BENEFITS HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS
DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2003 2002
(Decrease) increase in minimum liability included in other
comprehensive income ! $09) $356 $- $-

The expected long-term rate of return is the return to be earned, net of plan expenses, over the period that benefits are
paid. It reflects the rate of return on present investments and on expected contributions. In determining the expected
long-term rate of return, BNSF considered: 1) forward looking capital market forecasts, 2) historical returns for
individual asset classes and 3) the impact of active portfolio management.

The assumptions used in accounting for the BNSF plans were as follows:

PENSION BENEFITS HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS

ASSUMPTIONS USED TO DETERMINE NET (BENEFIT) COST FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2003 2002
Discount rate 6.5% 7.0% 6.5% 7.0%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.5% 8.5% - -
Rate of compensation increase 3.9% 4.0% L 3.9% 4.0%

| PENSION BENEFITS HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS
ASSUMPTIONS USED TO DETERMINE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS AT SEPTEMBER 30, r 2003 2002 2003 2002
Discount rate 6.0% 6.5% 6.0% 6.5%
Rate of compensation increase 3.9% 3.9% 3.9% 3.9%
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The following table shows the expected health care rate increase and the future rate and time at which it is expected to
remain constant.

DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002
Assumed health care cost trend rate 11% 11%
Rate to which health care cost trend rate is expected to decline and remain 5% 5%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimare trend rate 2010 | 2009

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-
percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:
ONE ONE

PERCENTAGE- PERCENTAGE-
| POINT INCREASE  POINT DECREASE

Effect on total service and interest cost $3 $(2)

Effect on post rerirement benefit obligation $36 $(30)

The qualified BNSF Retirement Plan asset allocation at September 30, 2003, and 2002 and the targer allocation for
2004 by asset category are as follows:

TARGET PERCENTAGE OF PENSION PLAN
PLAN ASSET ALLOCATION ALLOCATION ASSETS AT SEPTEMBER 30,
2004 2003 2002
Equity securities 45-75% 57 % 51%
Debt securities 25-45 33 39
Real estate 0-10 10 10
Other 0-5 - .
Tortal 100% 100% 100%

The general investment objective of the BNSF Retirement Plan is to grow the Plan assets in relation to the Plan liabilities
while prudently managing the risk of a decrease in the Plan’s assets relative to those liabilities. To meet this objective the
Employee Benefits Committee has adopted the above asset allocation ranges. The target for each asset class is the mid-
point of the range. Ranges allow flexibility to accommodate market changes in the asset class when those changes occur
on a temporary basis because of the cost in transitioning assets.

The Company expects to contribute approximately $20 million to its defined benefit pension plans and approximarely
$20 million to its OPEB plans in 2004.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

BNSF sponsors 401(k) plans which cover substantially ali employees. BNSF matches 50 percent of the first six percent of
non-union employees’ contributions and matches 25 percent on the first four percent of a limited number of union
employees’ contributions, which are subject to certain percentage limits of the employees’ earnings, at each pay period.
Depending on BNSF’s performance, non-union employees can receive an additional matching contribution of up to 30
percent of the first six percent at the end of the year. Employer contributions for all non-union employees are subject to
a five-year length of service vesting schedule. BNSF’s 401 (k) matching expense was $16 million, $15 million and $14
million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

OTHER

Under collective bargaining agreements, BNSF participates in mult-employer benefit plans which provide certain post-
retirement health care and life insurance benefits for eligible union employees. Insurance premiums paid attributable to
retirees, which are generally expensed as incurred, were $31 million, $20 million and $18 million, in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for other deferred benefits payable to certain
conductors, trainmen and locomotive engineets.
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14, STOCK OPTIONS AND OTHER INCENTIVE PLANS

On April 15, 1999, BNSF shareholders approved the BNSF 1999 Stock Incentive Plan and authorized 20 million shares
of BNSF common stock to be issued in connection with stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units and
performance stock. On April 18, 2001 and April 17, 2002, BNSF shareholders approved the amended BNSF 1999
Stock Incentive Plan, which authorized additional awards not to exceed 29 million and 35 million shares, respectively of
BNSF common stock to be issued in connection with stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units and
performance stock. Approximately three million common shares were available for future grant at December 31, 2003.

Additionally, on April 18, 1996, BNSF shareholders approved the non-employee director’s stock plan and authorized
900 thousand shares of BNSF common stock to be issued in connection with this plan. Approximately 600 thousand
common shares were available for future grant at December 31, 2003.

STOCK OPTIONS

Under BNSF’s stock option plans, options may be granted to officers and salaried employees at the fair market value of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Stock option grants awarded after April 2001 generally vest ratably
over three years and expire within ten years after the date of grant. Shares issued upon exercise of options may be issued
from treasury shares or from authorized but unissued shares.

The Company applies APB Opinion 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock option plans. See Note 2
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Company’s pro forma net income and earnings per share determined
based on the fair value at grant dates consistent with SFAS No. 123.

A summary of the status of the stock option plans as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and changes during the
years then ended, is presented below (options in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, ] 2003 2002 2001
‘ WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE EXERCISE EXERCISE
OPTIONS PRICES OPTIONS PRICES OPTIONS PRICES

Balance at beginning of year ! 39,323 $28.31 39,839 $28.02 38,423 $27.22
Granted 2957 $27.88 2,867 $27.76 7424 $29.02

Exercised (3,222) $22.68 (2,338) $21.58 (5,282) $23.31
Cancelled (738) $30.16 (1,045) $30.57 (726) $30.29

Balance at end of year 38,320 $28.72 39,323 $28.31 39,839 $28.02
Options exercisable at year end 31,465 $28.83 | 32,068 $28.30 32,893 $27.80

The following table summarizes information regarding stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003 (options in
thousands):

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED

NUMBER AVERAGE  AVERAGE EXERCISE NUMBER  AVERAGE EXERCISE

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES OUTSTANDING REMAINING LIFE PRICES EXERCISABLE PRICES
$18.04 to $24.83 2,625 2.6 Years $22.91 2,611 $22.90
$25.66 to $28.73 11,685 7.1 Years $26.65 7,212 $25.99
$28.76 to $30.98 16,466 5.1 Years $29.17 14,101 $29.19
$31.00 to $36.74 7,544 5.0 Years $32.95 ’ 7,541 $32.95

$18.04 0 $36.74 | 38,320 5.5 Years $2872 | 31465 $28.83




OTHER INCENTIVE PLANS
BNSF has other long-term incentive programs in addition to stock options as shown in the following table:

SHARES GRANTED FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

SHARES OUTSTANDING AS

OTHER INCENTIVE PLANS VESTED OF DECEMBER 31, 2003 2003 l 2002 2001
(in thousands except for vested) (in years)
Restricted shares

Time-based 3-5 2,133 558 999 725

Performance-based ' 3 321 - 340 -
BNSF Incentive Bonus Stock Program® 3 646 329 l 176 162
BNSF Discounted Stock Purchase Program® N/A 38 | 19 ‘ 12 7

(@)  Certain eligible employees may defer through the BNSF Incentive Bonus Stock Program (IBSP) the cash payment of their bonus for restricted stock.

(6)  Salaried employees not eligible to participate in the IBSP may use their bonus to purchase BNSF common stock at a discount from the market price.
These shares are vestricted for a three-year period.

Shares awarded under the plans may not be sold or used as collateral, and are generally not transferable, by the holder
until the shares awarded become free of restrictions. Compensation expense, net of tax, recorded under the BNSF Stock
Incentive Plans in accordance with APB Opinion 25 was $11 million, $10 million and $8 million for the years ended
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

15. COMMON STOCK AND PREFERRED CAPITAL STOCK

COMMON STOCK

BNSF is authorized to issue 600 million shares of common stock, $0.01 par value. At December 31, 2003, there were
371 million shares of common stock outstanding. Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote per share in the
election of directors and on all marters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Subject to the rights and preferences of any
future issuances of preferred stock, each share of common stock is entitled to receive dividends as may be declared by the
Board of Directors (the Board) out of funds legally available and 1o share ratably in all assets available for distribution to
stockholders upon dissolution or liquidation. No holder of common stock has any preemptive right to subscribe for any

securities of BNSF.

PREFERRED CAPITAL STOCK

At December 31, 2003, BNSF had 50 million shares of Class A Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value and 25 million shares of
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value available for issuance. The Board has the authority to issue such stock in one or more
seties, to fix the number of shares and to fix the designations and the powers, rights, and qualifications and restrictions of
each series.

SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

In July 1997, the Board authorized the repurchase of up to 30 million shares of the Company’s common stock from
time to time in the open market. In December 1999, April 2000, September 2000 and January 2003, the Board
authorized extensions of the BNSF share repurchase program, adding 30 million shares at each date to the total shares
previously authorized bringing BNSF’s share repurchase program to 150 million shares. During 2003, 2002 and 2001,
the Company repurchased approximately 8 million, 13 million, and 11 million shares, respectively, of its common stock
at average prices of $27.25 per share, $27.85 per share, and $27.76 per share, respectively. Tortal repurchases through
December 31, 2003, were 124 million shares at a total average cost of $26.05 per share, leaving 26 million shares
available for repurchase out of the 150 million shares presently authorized.
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16. ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In 2001, the Company entered into a partnership (the Partnership) with subsidiaries of three chemical manufacturing
companies that ship their products on the BNSF Railway to form San Jacinto Rail Limited. The purpose of the
Partnership is to construct and operate a 13-mile railroad, which will service several chemical and plastics manufacturing
facilities in the Houston, Texas, area. BNSF owns a 48 percent limited partnership interest and a one percent general
partnership interest in the Partnership and acts as the general partner and operator of this facility. San Jacinto Rail
Limited, an unconsolidated subsidiary, will likely be required to be consolidated by the Company pursuant to Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 46R (FIN 46), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, on
March 31, 2004. If consolidation is required, it will have a minimal impact to the Company’s financial statements
primarily due to the fact that the Company accounted for this investment prior to the adoption of FIN 46 under the
equity method of accounting and recorded all losses incurred by the Partnership from inception to date as required by
the partnership agreement.

BNSF has agreed to guarantee debt incurred by the Partnership, which is expected to be $85 million in connection with

the construction of this rail line, of which $50 million was outstanding as of December 31, 2003. See Note 9 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for information about BNSF’s guarantee of the Partnership’s debt.

17. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA—-UNAUDITED

(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) FOURTH THIRD SECOND FIRST
2003
Revenues $2,492 $2,395 $2,294 $2,232
Operating income $477 $430 $412 $346
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $226 $203 $200 $148
Net income $226 $203 $200 $187"
Basic earnings per share (before cumulative effect of
accounting change) $0.61 $0.55 $0.54 $0.40
Basic earnings per share (after cumulative effect of
accounting change) $0.61 $0.55 $0.54 $0.50
Diluted earnings per share (before cumulative effect of
accounting change) $0.61 $0.55 $0.54 $0.40
Diluted earnings per share (after cumulative effect of
accounting change) $0.61 $0.55 $0.54 $0.50
Dividends declared per share $0.15 $0.15 $0.12 $0.12
Common stock price:
High $32.31 $29.47 $29.80 $27.05
Low $27.65 $26.78 $24.89 $23.48
2002
Revenues $2,301 $2,308 $2,207 $2,163
Operating income $436 $419 $421 $380
Net income $202 $192 $194 $172
Basic earnings per share $0.54 $0.51 $0.51 $0.45
Diluted earnings per share $0.54 $0.51 $0.51 $0.45
Dividends declared per share $0.12 $0.12 $0.12 $0.12
Common stock price:
High $27.07 $30.48 $30.44 $31.48
Low $24.13 $23.74 $27.54 $26.85

(a) 2003 Net income includes the favorable cumulative effect of an accounting change of $39 million, net of tax, as described in Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-K, BNSF’s principal
executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that BNSF’s disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) are effective to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by BNSF in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to BNSF’s management,
including its principal executive and principal financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.
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Parc 11

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information concerning the directors of BNSF will be provided under the heading “Nominees for Directors” in BNSF’s
proxy statement for its 2004 annual meeting of shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year, and the information under that heading is hereby
incorporated by reference.

Information under the heading “Audit Committee” in BNSF’s proxy statement for its 2004 annual meeting of
shareholders, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the end of
the fiscal year, is hereby incorporated by reference into the Form 10-K.

Information concerning the executive officers of BNSF is included in Part [ of this Report on Form 10-K.

Information concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 will be under the heading
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in BNSF’s proxy statement for its 2004 annual meeting of
shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the end of
the fiscal year, and the information under that heading is hereby incorporated by reference.

In 2003, the Company adopted a Code of Ethics for the Chief Exccutive Officer and Senior Financial Officets (Code of
Ethics) applicable to the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, and Controller. A copy of the Code of Ethics
is available on the Company’s website at www.bnsf.com. Any waiver of this Code of Ethics may be granted only by the
Directors and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors or by the full Board. Any such waiver
granted will be timely disclosed on the Company’s website under the “Investors” link as will amendments to the Code of

Ethics.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information concerning the compensation of directors and executive officers of BNSF will be provided under the
heading “Directors’ Compensation” and under the headings “Summary Compensation Table,” “Stock Option Grants in
2003,” “Aggregated 2003 Stock Option Exercises and Year-End Option Values,” “Pension Plans,” “Employment
Contracts and Other Arrangements,” and “Trust Agreements,” in BNSF’s proxy statement for its 2004 annual meeting
of shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the end of
the fiscal year, and the information under those headings is hereby incorporated by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information concerning the ownership of BNSF equity securities by certain beneficial owners and by management will
be provided under the headings “Certain Beneficial Owners” and “Ownership of Management” in BNSF’s proxy
statement for its 2004 annual meeting of shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year, and the information under those headings is hereby incorporated
by reference.

Certain information about BNSF’s equity compensation plans will be provided under the heading “Equity
Compensation Plan Information” in BNSF’s proxy statement for its 2004 annual meeting of shareholders which will be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year, and the
information under such heading is hereby incorporated by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information concerning certain relationships and related transactions will be provided under the heading “Certain
Relationships” of BNSF’s proxy statement for its 2004 annual meeting of shareholders which will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year, and the information under
that heading is hereby incorporated by reference.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information concerning principal accounting fees and services will be provided under the heading “Independent
Auditor” of BNSF’s proxy statement for its 2004 annual meeting of shareholders which will be filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year, and the information under thac
heading is hereby incorporated by reference.
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Part IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:
1. Consolidated Financial Statements--See Item 8

Schedules are omitted because they are not required or applicable, or the required information is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or related notes.

2. Exhibits:

See Index to Exhibits beginning on page E-1 for a description of the exhibits filed as a part of this Report on
Form 10-K.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

Registrant furnished a report on Form 8-K on October 21, 2003 reporting under Itemn 12 a press release
announcing third-quarter 2003 operating results.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Burlington Northern Santa
Fe Corporation has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE
CORPORATION

By: /s/ Matthew K. Rose
Dated: February 12, 2004 Matthew K. Rose
Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

SIGNATURE . TITLE

/s/ Matthew K. Rose Chairman, President and Chief Fxecutive Officer
Matthew K. Rose (Principal Executive Officer), and Director

/s/ Thomas N. Hund Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Thomas N. Hund (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Dennis R. Johnson Vice President and Controller
Dennis R. Johnson (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Alan L. Boeckmann* Director

Alan L. Boeckmann

/s/ John J. Burns, Jr.* Director

John J. Burns, Jr.

/s/ Vilma S. Martinez* Director

Vilma S. Martinez

/s/ Marc F. Racicort™* Director
Marc F. Racicot

/s/ Roy S. Roberts* Director

Roy S. Roberts

/s/ Marc J. Shapiro* Director

MarcJ. Shapiro
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/s J.C. Wats, Jr.* Director

J.C. Watts, Jr.

/s/ Robert H. West* Director

Robert H. West

/s! J. Steven Whisler™ Director
J. Steven Whisler

/s/ Edward E. Whitacre Jr.* Director

Edward E. Whitacre, Jr.

/s/ Michael B. Yanney* Director

Michael B. Yanney

*By: /s/ Jeffrey R. Moreland

Dated: February 12, 2004 Jeftrey R. Moreland

Executive Vice President Law &
Government Affairs and Secretary
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BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

EXHIBIT NUMBER

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

4.9

410

10.1*

i0.2*

DESCRIPTION

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of BNSF (amended as of April 21, 1998).
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
1998. Certificate of Elimination of the Designation of the 6-1/4% Cumulative, Convertible Preferred
Stock, Series A, $0.02 Par Value. Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Junior
Participating Preferred Stock, Series B, $0.01 Par Value. Incorporated by reference to Exhibic 4.1 of
BNSF's Form 8-A 12B filed December 23, 1999. Certificate of Increase in the Number of Authorized
Shares of Junior Participating Preferred Stock, Series B, $0.01 Par Value. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

By-Laws of BNSF as amended September 20, 2001. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of BNSF’s
Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2001.

Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1995, between BNSF and The First National Bank of Chicago, as
Trustee. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to BNSF's Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No.
333-72013).

Form of BNSF’s 6 1/8% Notes Due 2009. Incorporated by reference to Exhibir 4.2 to BNSF’s Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998.

Form of BNSF’s 6 3/4% Debentures Due 2029. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to BNSF’s
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998.

Form of BNSF’ 6.70% Debenture Due August 1, 2028. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to
BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998.

Form of BNSF’s 7.875% Note Due April 15, 2007. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to BNSF’s
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

Form of BNSF’s 8.125% Debenture Due April 15, 2020. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to
BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

Form of BNSF’s 7.95% Debenture Due August 15, 2030. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to
BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

Form of BNSF’s 6.75% Note due July 15, 2011. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to BNSF’s
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001.

Form of BNSF’s 5.90% Note Due July 1, 2012. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to BNSF’s
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002.

Certain instruments evidencing long-term indebtedness of BNSF are not being filed as exhibits to this
Report because the total amount of securities authorized under any single such instrument does not
exceed 10% of BNSF’s total assets. BNSF will furnish copies of any material instruments upon request of
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Plan as amended July 17, 2003.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30,
2003.

The Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railway Company Incentive Compensation Plan as amended
effective January 1, 2003.
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EXHIBIT NUMBER

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6°

10.7°

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

DESCRIPTION

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated
effective September 16, 1998. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to BNSF’s Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1998 (formerly, Burlington Northern Inc. Deferred
Compensation Plan).

Burlington Northern Inc. Senior Executive Survivor Benefit Plan as of April 1, 1986. Incorporated by
reference to Amendment No. 1 to BNI’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
1987.

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation Senior Management Stock Deferral Plan. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibic 10.37 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999.
Amendment of the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation Senior Management Stock Deferral Plan
dated November 19, 2001 is incorporated by reference to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2001.

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Long Term Incentive Stock Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4(c) to BNSF’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 33-63247).

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation 1990 Directors Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference
to BNSF’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 33-62825).

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Incentive Bonus Stock Program, as amended and restated January 20,
1999. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1999.

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation 1992 Stock Option Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference
to BNSF’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 33-62839).

Butlington Northern Santa Fe 1996 Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to
BNSF’s Proxy Statement dated March 5, 1996. Amendment of Burlington Northern Santa Fe 1996
Stock Incentive Plan dated January 15, 1998 is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to BNSF's
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997. Amendment dated December 3,
1998. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1999.

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Supplemental Retirement Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to BNSF's Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1996.

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Estate Enhancement Program, as amended and restated effective October
1, 1996. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1996. Amendment to Burlington Northern Santa Fe Estate Enhancement Program
is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to BNSF’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999.

Form of BNSF Change-in-Control Agreement (applicable to Messrs. Ice, Hund, Moreland, and Lanigan,
and two other executive officers). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to BNSF’s Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996. Amendment daced December 17, 1998. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2001.

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors as amended and restated

January 16, 2003. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.
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EXHIBIT NUMBER

10.15°

10.16”

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20°

10.21*

10.22°

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

10.27¢

DESCRIPTION

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation Supplemental Investment and Retirement Plan. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2000.

Burlington Northern Inc. Form of Severance Agreement and amendments through September 18, 1995
(applicable to Mr. Rose). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995. Amendment to Form of Severance Agreement dated December
3, 1997 is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1997. Amendment dated January 6, 1999 is incorporated by reference to BNSF’s
Report on Form 10-X for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

Burlington Northern Inc. Director’s Charitable Award Program. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.22 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995.

Burlington Northern Santa Fe Salary Exchange Option Program. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.23 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999.

Santa Fe Pacific Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan (Supplemental Plan). Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(d) to SFP's Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1984.
Supplemental Plan as amended October 1, 1989, and Amendment to Supplemental Plan dated February
27, 1990, are incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(d) to SFP’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1989. Amendment to Supplemental Plan dated March 22, 1994, and effective
January 1, 1994, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 1995.

The Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railway Company Severance Plan as amended and restared
October 16, 2001. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

Burlington Northern Santa Fe 1999 Stock Incentive Plan as amended effective April 18, 2002.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to BNSF’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002.

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated as of Aprit 1, 1994 by and between SFP and The Bank of
New York. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1995.

Trust Agreement dated as of July 26, 1994 by and between SFP and The Bank of New York.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibic 10.31 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal vear ended
December 31, 1995.

Form of indemnification agreement dated as of September 17, 1998 between BNSF and directors.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998.

Form of indemnification agreement dated as of September 17, 1998 between BNSF and cerrain officers.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to BNSF's Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998.

Amendment to Burlington Northern Santa Fe Supplemental Retirement Plan (Matthew K. Rose) dated
April 18, 2002. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-Q for the
period ended June 30, 2002,

Retirement Benefit Agreement dated April 19, 2002 between BNSF and Matthew K. Rose. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to BNSE’s Repott on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002.
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EXHIBIT NUMBER

10.28*

10.29*

2.1

DESCRIPTION

Achievement Award Program of The Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railway Company as amended
and restated April 17, 2003. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to BNSF’s Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended June 30, 2003.

Retirement Benefit Agreement dated January 16, 2003 between BNSF and John P. Lanigan.
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

Subsidiaries of BNSE.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Powers of Attorney.

Principal Executive Officer’s Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 (Section 302 of Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002).

Principal Financial Officer’s Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 (Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002).

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 (Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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Exhibit 12.1

BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

(in millions, except ratio amounts)

(Unaudited)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2003 | 2002 2001
Earnings:
Income before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change $1,231 $1,216 $1,173
Add:
Interest and fixed charges, excluding capitalized interest 420 428 463
Portion of rent under long-term operating leases
representative of an interest factor 182 . 178 173
Distributed income of investees accounted for ‘}
under the equity method 3 3 5
Amortization of capitalized interest 8 | 8 7
Less: Undistributed equity in earnings of investments
accounted for under the equity method 14 | 17 23
Total earnings available for fixed charges 1,830 $1,816 $1,798
Fixed charges:
Interest and fixed charges $429 | $441 $477
Portion of rent under long-term operating leases representative
of an interest factor 182 | 178 173
Total fixed charges 611 $619 $650
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 3.00x 2.93x 2.77x
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Exhibit 31.1

PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Matthew K. Rose, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this annual report any changes in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 12, 2004

/s/ Matthew K. Rose
Matthew K. Rose
Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Thomas N. Hund, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual repory;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this annual report based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this annual report any changes in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and '

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 12, 2004

/s/ Thomas N. Hund
Thomas N. Hund

Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350
{SECTION 906 OF SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002)

BURLINGTON NORTHERN SANTA FE CORPORATION

In connection with the Annual Report of Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation (the "Company") on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
"Report”), the undersigned, Matthew K. Rose, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and
Thomas N. Hund, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies that, to
his knowledge on the date hereof:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13{a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

2. The information conrained in the Reporr fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company.

Dated: February 12, 2004

/s/ Matthew K. Rose /s/ Thomas N. Hund
Matthew K. Rose Thomas N. Hund
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Burlington Northern Santa Fe
Corporation and will be retained by Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation and furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

E-8




Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation Directors®

Alan L, Boeckmann **
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, Fluor Corporation
(professional services holding
company offering engineering,
construction management and
other services),

Aliso Viejo, California.

Board member since 2001.

John J. Burns, Jr. *?
President and Chief Executive
Officer, Alleghany Corporation
(holding company with
insurance, investment manage-
ment, industrial minerals and
steel fastener importing and
distribution),

New York, New York.

Board member since 1995.

Viima S. Martinez *
Partner, Munger, Tolles &
Olson LLP (law firm),

Los Angeles, California.
Board member since 1998,

Corporate Officers '

Matthew K. Rose *
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Thomas N, Hund *
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Carl R. lce*
Executive Vice President and
Chief Operations Officer

John P. Lanigan, Jr. *

Executive Vice President and
Chief Marketing Officer

Jeffrey R. Morefand *
Executive Vice President Law &
Government Affairs and Secretary

Mare F. Racicot "*

Partner, Bracewell & Patterson,
L.L.P (law firm), Washington,
D.C,, and Chairman, Bush-Cheney
04, Inc. (political organization),
Washington, D.C.

Former Governor of Montana,
Board member since 2001.

Roy S. Roberts ***
Managing Director, Reliant
Equity Investors, L.L.C. (private
equity firm), Chicago, Illinois,
and Retired Group Vice
President, North American
Vehicle Sales, Service and Market-
ing, General Motors Corporation
{mortor vehicle manufacturer),
Dertroit, Michigan.

Board member since 1993.

Matthew K. Rose '
Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer, Burlington
Northern Santa Fe Corporation
and The Burlingron Northern
and Santa Fe Railway Company,
Fort Worth, Texas.

Board member since 2000.

Jeffrey J. Campbell
Vice President — Technology
Services and Chief Information

Officer
A, P. (Skip) Endres, Jr.

Vice President — Government

Affairs

James H. Gallegos
Vice President and
Corporate General Counsel

Paul R. Hoferer
Vice President and
General Counsel

Llinda J. Hurt

Treasurer

Operating Company Officers

Stevan B, Bobb
Group Vice President —
Agricultural Products

Stephen G. Branscum
Group Vice President —
Consumer Products

Rollin D. Bredenberg
Vice President — Service Design
and Performance

M. David Dealy

Vice President — Transportation

Frederick G. (Fritz) Draper
Vice President — Business Unit
Operations and Support

George T. Duggan
Vice President — Industrial
Products Sales

John J. Fleps

Vice President — Labor Relations

Marc J. Shapiro *

Chairman, Chase Bank of Texas
(banking), Houston, Texas, and
Retired Vice Chairman for
Finance, Risk Management and
Administration, J.P. Morgan
Chase & Co. (bank holding
company), New York, New York.
Board member since 1995.

J.C. Watts, Jr. *

Chairman, J.C. Watts Compa-
nies, L.L.C. and J.C. Warts
Enterprises, Inc. (communica-
tions and public affairs), Norman,
Oklahoma. Former Congressman
(R-4th Dist., Okla.) and
Chairman, House Republican
Conference.

Board member since 2003.

Robert H, West "'**

Retired Chairman of the Board,
Butler Manufacturing Company
(manufacturer of pre-engineered
building systems and specialty
components),

Kansas City, Missouri.

Board member since 1980.

Dennis R. Johnson *
Vice President and Controller

Kenneth J. Kempker
Vice President — Corporate Audit
Services

Marsha K. Morgan
Vice President — Investor
Relations

Petfer J. Rickershauser’®
Vice President - Network
Development

Richard A, Russack
Vice President — Corporate
Relations

Gregory €. Fox

Vice President — Engineering

David L. Garin
Group Vice President -
Industrial Products

Craig Hill
Vice President — Mechanical and
Value Engineering

Thomas G. Kraemer
Group Vice President ~ Coal

J. Steven Whisler **
Chairman and Chief Executive
Ofhicer, Phelps Dodge Corpora-
tion (mining and manufacturing),
Phoenix, Arizona.

Board member since 1995.

Edward E. Whitacre, Jr."*
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer, SBC Communications
Inc. (communications holding
company), San Antonio, Texas.
Board member since 1993.

Michael B. Yanney "’
Chairman, America First
Companies L.L.C. (investments),
Omaha, Nebraska.

Board member since 1989.

Committee Assignments:
' Executive Commitree

* Compensation and Develop-
ment Committee

3 Audit Committee

* Directors and Corporate
Governance Committee

* Years of Board service includes
service on Boards of Burlington
Northern Inc., Santa Fe Pacific
Corporation and predecessor
corporations.

Sheliey J. Venick
Vice President and
General Tax Counsel

Richard E. Weicher
Vice President and
Senior Regulatory Counsel

Gloria A, Zamora
Vice President — Human
Resources and Medical

! These officers hold similar
positions with The Burlington
Northern and Santa Fe Railway
Company.

? Executive Officer of Burlington
Northern Santa Fe Corporation.

Mark A. Schulze
Vice President and Chief
Sourcing Officer

Sami M. Shalah
Vice President ~ Coal Marketing

Denis J. Smith
Vice President — Industrial
Products Marketing

Gregory W. Stengem
Vice President — Safety, Training
and Operations Support




Shareholder information

Shares Listed
New York Stock Exchange
Chicago Stock Exchange

Pacific Stock Exchange
Ticker Symbol: BNI

Principal Corporate Office
2650 Lou Menk Drive,

Fort Worth, Texas 76131-2830
(800) 795-2673

www.bnsf.com

Stock Transfer Agent
and Registrar
Via first class/registered mail:

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
PO. Box 43069

Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3069

Via private mail carrier:
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
250 Royall Street

Canton, Massachusetts 02021

(800) 526-5678

http://www.equiserve.com

Shareholders

As of February 2, 2004, there
were approximately 40,000
shareholders of record.

Shareholder Services

You are encouraged to contact
our Transfer Agent directly for
these shareholder services:

Change in Certificate Registra-
tion, Dividend Reinvestment
Service, Change of Mailing
Address, Lost or Stolen
Certificates, Replacement of
Dividend Checks, Direct Deposit
of Dividends, Consolidation of
Multiple Accounts, Elimination
of Duplicate Report Mailings,
Replacement of Form 1099-DIV.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

A dividend reinvestment plan is
provided for registered sharehold-
ers as a convenient way to
purchase more shares through
investmment of dividends or
voluntary cash payments. A
booklet describing the plan is
available from the Transfer Agent.

® 2004 Burlington Northern Santa Fe Corporation. All rights reserved.
Principal photography: Eric Myer. Matthew Rose photo: Jamie Williams. Design: Methodologie Inc. Printing: Williamson Printing Corporation.

SEC Filings

The Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) is posted on
the Company’s website, www.
bnsf.com. A copy of the Annual
Report on Form 10-K is also
available to shareholders free of
charge upon request to the
Company’s Investor Relations
Department at 2500 Lou Menk
Drive, Fort Worth, Texas 76131-
2828. The Company’s filings on
Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and
Form 8-K are posted on the
Company’s website as soon as
reasonably practicable after the
reports are electronically filed
with the SEC. Reports on Forms
3, 4 and 5 by directors and
Section 16 reporting officers are
posted on the Company’s website
no later than the day following
their filing with the SEC.

Institutional investors

Inquiries from security analysts
and investment professionals
should be directed to the
Company's investor relations
contact:

Ms. Marsha K. Morgan
Vice President — Investor
Relations, (817) 352-6452

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of
Shareholders will be held at the
City Club of Fort Worth, 301
Commerce Street, Fort Worth,
Texas 76102, on Wednesday,
April 21, 2004, at 2:00 p.m.
CDT.

Submitting a Complaint
or Concern

To report or submit complaints,
concerns or any issues regarding
accounting, internal controls,
auditing matters or other
concerns, call the BNSF Hotline
at (800) 241-5689. You may
report such matters confidentially
and anonymously.
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